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Change is a controlling fact of economic life.
−John Kenneth Galbraith

	 Change happens everywhere and at all times. The ubiquity of 
change in social and economic experience corresponds to the fact that 
“life happens” at the level of individual experience. Our awareness of that 
latter fact serves as the basis for a firm commitment that we have made to 
customers: “We’re here for you when life happens.” The pervasiveness of 
economic change, however, has larger structural implications with respect 
to how the Bank works across the board. To acknowledge the controlling 
nature of the fact of change does not entail ceding control to the unforeseen. 
Rather, it entails a commitment to driving and directing change as much as 
it does to adapting to it.

	 To the extent that, on balance, the force of intentional change 
aimed at conserving what matters most in a given institution overmatches 
that of unintended change, the quality of that institution will be maintained 
or improved. The corollary, however, is that to the extent that the force 
of intentional change within an institution does not overmatch that of 
unintended change that institution may not continue to exist, much less 
thrive.

	 The past year at Cambridge Trust Company provided us with 
a vivid example of the way in which change may be directed to ensure 
growth and bring about betterment. To walk into the main office of the 
Bank is to be welcomed by new and improved surroundings. Yet it is also 
to walk into the same Bank that customers and employees have come to 
trust over the years.
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	 In my first letter to shareholders some years back, I shared 
with readers a passage from a book by the author who is quoted above 
in different context. Back then, I recalled the following passage from A 
Tenured Professor: “Once Marvin went to Cambridge Trust in Harvard 
Square to cash a check. … The president of the bank came forward from 
his desk at the back of the large enclosure which he shared democratically 
with … officials, loan officers and secretaries. He shook hands warmly 
with Marvin … and then carried Marvin’s check away to be cashed.”

	 A “Marvin” of today could still meet the president on the banking 
floor. It is a floor that has been reimagined, however, to provide customers 
with an enhanced banking experience fit for the twenty-first century. The 
changes that customers do see correspond to ones that they do not see. By 
improving the customer experience and expanding into new markets, we 
have made positive changes both behind the scenes and in full view. Our 
focus on accessible and responsive service shows up in all that we do.

	 In 2014 Cambridge Trust achieved another record year in earnings. 
Net income for the year ending December 31, 2014 was $14,944,000 
compared to $14,140,000 for the year ending December 31, 2013. The 
year-over-year increase in earnings of $804,000 was 5.7%.

	 Diluted earnings per share (EPS) were $3.78 for the year ended 
December 31, 2014, compared to $3.62 in the prior year.

	 In numerical terms, the Bank’s record earnings performance was 
produced by a sustained and robust increase in commercial and consumer 
loans, as well as continued double digit growth in Wealth Management 
revenue. This increase reflects the success of the management and 
employee team in executing the Bank’s business plans. It also reflects our 
commitment to consistent, measurable betterment.

	 Total loans grew $138 million in 2014 or 14.7%. This growth 
took total loans outstanding over the $1 billion threshold. Market 
conditions remained intensely competitive in both the consumer and 
commercial sectors. Moreover, the Federal Reserve Bank maintained its 
accommodative monetary policy keeping short-term interest rates at near 
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zero. This, combined with relatively low longer-term rates kept pressure 
on interest margins across the industry. Cambridge Trust’s net interest 
margin in 2014 declined by two basis points to 3.33% compared to 3.35% 
for the year ended December 31, 2013.

	 Despite the ongoing downward pressure on net interest margins, 
(see table below), Cambridge Trust produced net interest income of $48.3 
million for the year ending December 31, 2014, compared to $45.5 million 
in the prior year. The increase of $2.8 million (6.2%) in 2014 benefitted 
from current loan growth, as well as from the momentum created from 
2013’s record $200 million increase in loans.

	 Year End	 2010	 2011	 2012	 2013	 2014

Deposits (in thousands)........	 $	 993,808		  $	1,125,654		  $	1,281,333		  $	1,409,047		  $	1,370,536
Total Loans (in thousands)...	 $	 568,568		  $	 673,265		  $	 742,249		  $	 942,451		  $	1,080,766
Net Interest Margin..............		  4.15	%		  3.90	%		  3.58	%		  3.35	%		  3.33	%
Noninterest Income
  (in thousands)(A).................	 $	 19,877		  $	 18,147		  $	 20,489		  $	 23,181		  $	 24,464
Net Income (in thousands)...	 $	 13,254		  $	 12,477		  $	 13,403		  $	 14,140		  $	 14,944
Basic Earnings/Share...........	 $	 3.53		  $	 3.29		  $	 3.49		  $	 3.65		  $	 3.81
Dividends Declared..............	 $	 1.40		  $	 1.42		  $	 1.50		  $	 1.59		  $	 1.68
Book Value...........................	 $	 23.73		  $	 25.39		  $	 27.21		  $	 28.13		  $	 29.50
Return/Average Assets.........		  1.25	%		  1.06	%		  1.00	%		  0.99	%		  0.98	%
Return/Average Equity.........		  14.98	%		  13.26	%		  13.39	%		  13.63	%		  12.87	%

(A)	 Includes $2.8 million pre-tax gain on disposition of merchant services portfolio in 2010

	 As noted in prior annual reports, Cambridge Trust benefitted 
immensely from the revenues generated by its Wealth Management 
group. In 2014 the group’s investment management and fiduciary services 
produced revenues of $18.0 million compared to $16.3 million in 2013, an 
increase of $1.7 million (10.4%).

	 The Bank continued to achieve admirable returns on equity and 
assets in line with industry standards for high-performing banks. The 
return on average equity was 12.87% in 2014 and return on average assets 
was 0.98%.
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New technology is important to consumers ... when it increases their personal
freedom, makes life more convenient, or facilitates desired experiences.

−C.K. Prahalad and Venkatram Ramaswamy

Consumer Banking

	 If ever there was an area of the Bank characterized by change, 
surely it was Consumer Banking. Most of the changes were made to 
better position Cambridge Trust to compete in a competitive and rapidly 
evolving market. Some were made in response to external factors such as 
incessant regulatory changes. There were also some personnel changes, as 
described below.

	 Consumer lending, primarily residential mortgage and home 
equity loans, has been a core strength for the Bank, especially in the last 
year. In 2014 we introduced and promoted new products in each area and 
the outcome was rewarding. Residential mortgage loans increased $49 
million (10.7%) to $507.2 million. Home equity loans increased $9.9 
million (21.3%) to $56.6 million. The multi-channel marketing campaign 
for the Bank’s new home equity product produced higher-than-expected 
new sales. There is upside potential to interest income as we have begun 
to see growing line usage among new and existing customers.

	 I should note that there were changes in management in this area, 
as we bid farewell to three long-term employees who were instrumental in 
building, managing, and overseeing the business. We thank Robert Davis, 
Susan Barry, and Gabriele Fabrizio for their service, and wish them well in 
retirement. We also welcomed Vidalia “Val” DiVito, Vice President, who 
will lead our consumer lending business, and Laura Ganat, Assistant Vice 
President.

	 Cambridge Trust’s sustained investments in technology benefitted 
customers, the Bank, and the environment. Our e-banking customers have 
made active use of recently introduced capabilities to receive loan and 
deposit information electronically, which improves access and timeliness, 
strengthens security, enhances satisfaction, and reduces paper.
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	 The introduction of iPads in each of our branches facilitates a 
better customer experience. Managers and other service representatives 
may easily provide timely digital solutions for customers signing up for 
new services like eStatements or learning about other Bank services.

	 As more and more of our customers gravitate to mobile banking, 
we continue to strive to make more effective use of the Bank’s branch 
infrastructure. In this regard, we asked James Zurn to take on new 
responsibilities as Retail Administrator for Sales and Service, and 
promoted him to Vice President. We also promoted two branch managers 
to Vice President: Ana Mojica and Maria Montgomery have provided 
the leadership that has produced impressive growth at their respective 
branches in Cambridge.

	 One of the primary threats faced by all industries involves cyber 
security. We invest significantly in building barriers to protect the Bank 
and its customers from illegal intrusions. Just as importantly, we provide 
training for our employees and guidance to our customers on how best to 
protect personal and business information. The threat is constant, as is our 
vigilance. With the retirement of Charles Samour, we welcomed Walter 
McIrney, Assistant Vice President and Security Officer, and promoted 
Jason Stone to Information Security Officer.

	 During the year there were well publicized instances of 
compromised credit and debit cards resulting from data breaches at several 
retail chains. This is especially troublesome for the banking industry since 
liability for card fraud is carried by the card issuer and not the retailer 
where the incursion occurred.

	 Banks have been pushing for the introduction of what is called 
Europay, MasterCard and Visa (EMV) chip card technology, a global 
standard that is commonly used outside the United States. In October of 
2015, merchants, with the exception of gas stations, will be required to 
accept chip cards. Cambridge Trust has already introduced this technology 
and is prepared for industry adoption.
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Community development may be defined as conscious acceleration
of ... change by combining outside assistance with organized local

self-determination and effort.
−Sri S. Venugopal

Business Banking

	 Commercial lending has been one of the driving forces behind the 
Bank’s earnings performance. Record loan growth of $90 million in 2013 
propelled earnings growth in 2014. Although not quite at 2013 levels, the 
commercial lending team had a very successful year, as loans increased 
$77 million. Commercial real estate loans accounted for the change with 
lenders expanding existing business relationships and adding new ones. 
Two new lenders, Martin Fenton and John Quintal, joined the lending 
team as Vice Presidents in 2014 and have already made an impact.

	 The innovation economy continued to flourish in Massachusetts, 
nowhere more so than in the densely populated Cambridge/Boston tech 
ecosystem. There has been an immense convergence of ideas, talent, and 
capital that has produced a breakout year for funded start-ups. The Bank’s 
Innovation Banking Group has established its presence in this exciting 
sector, achieving new levels of growth in 2014.

	 Cambridge Trust consistently demonstrates our active commitment 
to community development. We consider it our responsibility to seek 
and identify those opportunities where the talents and resources of the 
Bank can improve circumstances in and around the communities we 
serve. In 2014 we undertook an important initiative to expand and deepen 
the Bank’s community development lending activities. We asked two 
experienced lenders, Stephen Caputo, Vice President, and Dina Scianna, 
Vice President, to provide the leadership for this effort. There is much to 
be done in the area of affordable housing and other sectors of the vibrant 
communities in which we have been fortunate to thrive. Cambridge Trust 
will continue to take a good story and make it better.

	 There are other ways the Bank supports community development. 
Last year I mentioned that we made a $1 million investment in Boston 
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Community Capital’s Boston Community Loan Fund. In 2014 we made 
a $1 million investment in the Massachusetts Housing Investment 
Corporation (MHIC). MHIC, founded in 1990, is an innovative private 
financier of affordable housing and community development throughout 
Massachusetts, providing financing that would not otherwise be available.

	 As we undertake larger and more complex loans, it is critically 
important to maintain the Bank’s consistently strong credit underwriting 
standards. Our shareholders expect nothing less. Non-performing loans 
were $1.6 million on December 31, 2014, slightly lower compared to 
the prior year-end. In 2014 we provided $1.6 million, a similar amount 
to 2013, to the Bank’s Allowance for Loan Losses. This provision was 
primarily in response to loan growth. The Allowance at year-end 2014 
was $14.3 million, or 1.32% of total loans outstanding. At December 31, 
2013, the Allowance for Loan Losses was $12.7 million, or 1.35% of 
total loans outstanding. From time to time, we do charge off loans but we 
are persistent in seeking recoveries. In 2014 there were net recoveries of 
$11,377.

Wealth Management

	 Cambridge Trust’s Wealth Management business had another 
successful year, reaching new highs for assets under management (AUM) 
and revenues. In 2014 AUM grew $150 million (7.0%) to almost $2.3 
billion. Revenues reached $18.0 million for the year ending December 31, 
2014, increasing $1.7 million (10.4%) compared to revenues in 2013.

Wealth Management

			  Gross Revenues	 Managed Assets
	 Year	 	 (in thousands)		 	 (in millions)	

	 2010	 $	 12,364	 $	 1,507
	 2011	 $	 13,152	 $	 1,468
	 2012	 $	 14,110	 $	 1,795
	 2013	 $	 16,265	 $	 2,140
	 2014	 $	 17,954	 $	 2,290
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	 I have found over the years that record performances such as 
that achieved by Wealth Management are not often attributable solely to 
one factor. Rather these achievements depend upon numerous factors, 
including leadership, plan execution, and, of course, teamwork. In 2014 
we were pleased that Judith Noel, Senior Vice President and Trust Officer, 
joined the Granite State team, which will surely help to support New 
Hampshire’s successful growth strategy.

	 The timing for an expansion of the Granite State team was 
deliberate because we will open an office in Manchester, NH and relocate 
our Concord, NH office in the first quarter of 2015. And, in Massachusetts 
we recognized Alice Flanagan’s many contributions and promoted her to 
Assistant Vice President.

	 Over the past decade, through various thoughtful initiatives, the 
Wealth Management brand has become stronger. The highly successful 
Thought Series® now in its ninth year has positioned Wealth Management 
as a thought leader on a variety of subjects. Benefits from these stimulating 
events are many and real, including heightened engagement by customers 
and the growth of the Bank as a site of opportunity, innovation, and 
learning. Like our neighbor across the street at Harvard, we are committed 
to asking questions and thinking through ideas in communal settings.

	 Each year Wealth Management builds on its well-established 
brand by offering insightful articles on the Bank’s website and extending 
its reach to more segments of the community. The Bank is Lead Corporate 
Partner for The Philanthropy Connection (TPC). This forward looking 
organization is a “group of like-minded women joining together to engage 
in collective philanthropy.” In our Portsmouth, New Hampshire and 
Boston Wealth Management offices, we sponsored a “Women and Wealth 
Series” and an event that addressed life and estate planning issues facing 
same-sex couples.

	 During 2014 Wealth Management introduced two new investment 
strategies. The Capital Appreciation – All Equity Portfolio aims to provide 
long-term capital appreciation by investing in a concentrated number of 
global equity securities that are trading for less than intrinsic value. The 
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Sustainable and Responsible Investing (SRI) Portfolio targets undervalued 
high-quality companies that provide long-term competitive financial 
returns and make a positive impact in the communities and environments 
in which they operate. The Bank’s overriding strategy is to provide a range 
of investment alternatives that address the diverse interests, needs, and 
risk appetites of our clients.

* * * * * *

	 The changes that have occurred across the sectors of our business 
have provided more value to our customers, strengthened the Bank’s 
competitive position, and helped to sustain earnings performance. To 
leverage further these many positive developments, it is crucial for the 
Bank to “get the word out” to wider groups of prospective customers. 
Each year we have refined and enhanced our marketing initiatives and 
messaging to increase awareness and to elevate the “Life’s Bank” brand 
platform.

	 Cambridge Trust enhanced its digital strategy in 2014 by creating 
a new, more responsive website, improving email communications, and 
heightening our presence on social media channels. Our overall aim is to 
increase and improve the ways we connect and engage with customers. 
We developed new content to better align brand values with those of our 
customers. All content posted has the intent of extending the “Life’s Bank” 
experience and brand beyond the branches and Wealth Management 
offices, and integrating it into the day-to-day digital lives of our customers 
and prospects.

	 We made some organizational adjustments in 2014 that bring 
better alignment with achieving the Bank’s business objectives. There 
were also three important promotions that reflect the long-term leadership 
responsibilities of three members of the management team. Appointed 
to Executive Vice President were Thomas Johnson, Martin Millane, and 
Albert Rietheimer.

	 A recognized core strength of Cambridge Trust Company has been 
corporate governance, which is so important to the health and well-being 
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of this fine institution. The Board of Directors is engaged, knowledgeable 
about the Bank’s strategy and operations, and generous with its insights 
and guidance. During the year, Leon Palandjian was appointed Lead 
Director of the Board.

	 In July we were saddened to learn about the passing of our good 
friend and former Director, James Stockwell. When Jim retired from the 
Board in 2005 after serving for forty-one years, I noted that he consistently 
emphasized the importance of developing and executing strategic and 
tactical plans. We all benefitted from his wisdom on this, and many other 
matters.

	 In 2014 we were sorry to see Jean Mixer step down from the Board 
after serving with distinction for eight years. We were pleased, however, 
to welcome Sarah (Sally) Green as a new member of the Board. Sally has 
spent most of her career at the Federal Reserve Bank, first in Boston and 
subsequently in Richmond, Virginia where she was First Vice President 
and Chief Operating Officer. The Bank will benefit significantly from 
Sally’s operations, technology, regulatory, and leadership background.

	 In 2015 Cambridge Trust will undergo a planned change in 
leadership, which was announced in June 2014. The process for identifying 
and appointing my successor is well underway. Under the leadership of 
former Lead Director, Linda Whitlock, the Search Committee is overseeing 
the transition process. This is both an interesting and exciting time for the 
Bank, and there will be more to say in 2015.

* * * * * *

	 I have had a wonderful experience these past fourteen years, and 
a unique vantage point from which to observe this institution’s growth 
and development. Each year when reviewing the Bank’s progress and 
activities in the annual report, I have tried to convey a theme or sense of 
the organization’s qualities. In speaking about this Bank, its management 
team, and its current and former employees, it is fitting to use terms such as 
“responsible,” “accountable,” “caring,” “generous,” and “dedicated.” Year 
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after year, the entire team has delivered an extraordinary performance. I 
am fortunate to have worked with such a fine group, and I thank them.

	 In closing, I also want to thank the many customers who have 
entrusted their financial matters to Cambridge Trust. Likewise, to you our 
shareholders, thank you for your investment and confidence in the Bank. 
Its foundation is firm; its future is bright.

	 Respectfully submitted,

	 Joseph V. Roller II
	 President and CEO
	 February 27, 2015
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Cambridge Bancorp:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Cambridge Bancorp and its 
subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, 
and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ 
equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial 
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our 
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Cambridge Bancorp and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014 
and 2013, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance 
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We also have examined, in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute 
of Certified Public Accountants, Cambridge Trust Company’s internal control over financial reporting 
as of December 31, 2014, based on criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework 
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”) and 
our report dated February 27, 2015 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of Cambridge 
Trust Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

 

Boston, Massachusetts
February 27, 2015
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CAMBRIDGE BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

	 	 December 31,	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
	 (In thousands)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents............................................................	 $	 17,440	 $	 88,107
Investment securities:
	 Available for sale, at fair value...............................................		  339,791		  388,793
	 Held to maturity, at amortized cost.........................................	 	 79,646	 	 59,181
		  Total investment securities................................................		  419,437		  447,974
Loans held for sale, at lower of cost or fair value........................		  284		  403
Loans:
	 Residential mortgage..............................................................		  507,216		  458,176
	 Commercial mortgage.............................................................		  441,842		  363,294
	 Home equity............................................................................		  56,579		  46,635
	 Commercial.............................................................................		  49,492		  50,758
	 Consumer................................................................................	 	 25,637	 	 23,588
		  Total loans.........................................................................		  1,080,766		  942,451
	 Allowance for loan losses.......................................................	 	 (14,269)	 	 (12,708)
		  Net loans...........................................................................		  1,066,497		  929,743
Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston stock, at cost......................		  7,955		  6,231
Bank owned life insurance...........................................................		  29,220		  23,555
Banking premises and equipment, net..........................................		  8,367		  9,951
Accrued interest receivable..........................................................		  3,925		  3,626
Other assets...................................................................................	 	 20,567	 	 24,120
			   Total assets..................................................................	 $	1,573,692	 $	1,533,710

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Deposits:
	 Demand...................................................................................	 $	 390,286	 $	 382,255
	 Interest bearing checking........................................................		  352,661		  335,010
	 Money market.........................................................................		  74,654		  78,410
	 Savings....................................................................................		  430,040		  489,160
	 Certificates of deposit.............................................................	 	 122,895	 	 124,212
		  Total deposits....................................................................		  1,370,536		  1,409,047
Short-term borrowings..................................................................		  69,000		  —
Other liabilities.............................................................................	 	 17,898	 	 15,380
		  Total liabilities..................................................................	 	 1,457,434	 	 1,424,427
Stockholders’ equity:
	 Common stock, par value $1.00; Authorized
	   10,000,000 shares; Outstanding: 3,940,536 and
	   3,884,851 shares, respectively..............................................		  3,941		  3,885
	 Additional paid-in capital.......................................................		  28,264		  26,027
	 Retained earnings....................................................................		  91,098		  83,479
	 Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)..................	 	 (7,045)	 	 (4,108)
			   Total stockholders’ equity...........................................	 	 116,258	 	 109,283
			   Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity....................	 $	1,573,692	 $	1,533,710

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these 
consolidated financial statements.
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CAMBRIDGE BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

	 	 Year Ended December 31,	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
	 (In thousands, except
	 per share data)

Interest income:
	 Interest on loans...................................................................	 $	 40,481	 $	 35,669
	 Interest on taxable investment securities.............................		  7,085		  9,905
	 Interest on tax exempt investment securities.......................		  2,664		  2,028
	 Dividends on FHLB of Boston stock...................................		  101		  20
	 Interest on overnight investments........................................	 	 40	 	 39
		  Total interest income......................................................	 	 50,371	 	 47,661
Interest expense:
	 Interest on deposits..............................................................		  1,950		  1,970
	 Interest on borrowed funds..................................................	 	 148	 	 224
		  Total interest expense.....................................................	 	 2,098	 	 2,194
		  Net interest income........................................................		  48,273		  45,467
Provision for loan losses............................................................	 	 1,550	 	 1,500
		  Net interest income after provision for loan losses........	 	 46,723	 	 43,967
Noninterest income:
	 Wealth management income................................................		  17,954		  16,265
	 Deposit account fees............................................................		  2,416		  2,567
	 ATM/Debit card income......................................................		  1,247		  1,182
	 Bank owned life insurance income......................................		  665		  652
	 Gain on disposition of investment securities.......................		  1,073		  1,121
	 Gain on loans held for sale...................................................		  170		  519
	 Other income........................................................................	 	 939	 	 875
		  Total noninterest income................................................	 	 24,464	 	 23,181
Noninterest expense:
	 Salaries and employee benefits............................................		  27,799		  26,995
	 Occupancy and equipment...................................................		  8,510		  8,163
	 Data processing....................................................................		  4,567		  4,012
	 Professional services............................................................		  2,008		  1,548
	 Marketing.............................................................................		  2,117		  1,822
	 FDIC Insurance....................................................................		  793		  739
	 Other expenses.....................................................................	 	 3,213	 	 2,832
		  Total noninterest expense...............................................	 	 49,007	 	 46,111
		  Income before income taxes..........................................		  22,180		  21,037
Income tax expense....................................................................	 	 7,236	 	 6,897
		  Net income.....................................................................	 $	 14,944	 $	 14,140

Per share data:
	 Basic earnings per common share........................................	 $	 3.81	 $	 3.65
	 Diluted earnings per common share....................................	 $	 3.78	 $	 3.62
	 Average shares outstanding - basic......................................		  3,886,692		  3,839,146
	 Average shares outstanding - diluted...................................		  3,957,416		  3,907,201

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these 
consolidated financial statements.
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CAMBRIDGE BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

	 	 Year Ended December 31,	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
	 (In thousands)

Net income....................................................................................	 $	 14,944	 $	 14,140

Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax:
	 Defined benefit retirement plans:
		  Change in unfunded retirement liability...........................		  (6,222)		  5,671
	 Unrealized gains/(losses) on Available for Sale securities:
		  Unrealized holding gains/(losses) arising
		    during the period.............................................................		  3,973		  (9,887)
		  Less: reclassification adjustment for gains
		    recognized in net income................................................	 	 (688)	 	 (720)
Other comprehensive income/(loss).............................................	 	 (2,937)	 	 (4,936)

		  Comprehensive income.....................................................	 $	 12,007	 $	 9,204

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these 
consolidated financial statements.
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CAMBRIDGE BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

	 	 Year Ended December 31,	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
	 (In thousands)

Cash flows provided by operating activities:
	 Net income..............................................................................	 $	 14,944	 $	 14,140
	 Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
	   provided by operating activities:
		  Provision for loan losses...................................................		  1,550		  1,500
		  Amortization of deferred charges/(income), net...............		  1,060		  720
		  Depreciation and amortization..........................................		  1,817		  1,569
		  Bank owned life insurance income...................................		  (665)		  (652)
		  Gain on disposition of investment securities....................		  (1,073)		  (1,121)
		  Compensation expense from stock option
		    and restricted stock grants...............................................		  509		  439
		  Change in loans held for sale............................................		  119		  1,281
		  Change in accrued interest receivable, deferred
		    taxes, other assets and other liabilities............................		  (2,216)		  4,998
		  Other, net...........................................................................	 	 56	 	 321
			   Net cash provided by operating activities...................	 	 16,101	 	 23,195
Cash flows used by investing activities:
	 Origination of loans................................................................		  (301,863)		  (333,266)
	 Purchase of:
		  Investment securities - AFS..............................................		  (43,741)		  (55,577)
		  Investment securities - HTM............................................		  (24,295)		  (4,427)
	 Maturities, calls and principal payments of:
		  Loans.................................................................................		  163,161		  132,692
		  Investment securities - AFS..............................................		  68,190		  117,713
		  Investment securities - HTM............................................		  3,776		  16,361
	 Proceeds from sale of investment securities - AFS.................		  30,013		  35,557
	 Purchase of bank owned life insurance...................................		  (5,000)		  —
	 Change in FHLB of Boston stock...........................................		  (1,724)		  (1,221)
	 Purchase of banking premises and equipment........................	 	 (233)	 	 (5,306)
			   Net cash used by investing activities..........................	 	 (111,716)	 	 (97,474)
Cash flows provided by financing activities:
	 Net change in deposits............................................................		  (38,511)		  127,714
	 Net change in short-term borrowings.....................................		  69,000		  —
	 Repayment of long-term borrowings......................................		  —		  (20,000)
	 Proceeds from issuance of common stock..............................		  1,925		  1,255
	 Repurchase of common stock.................................................		  (864)		  (342)
	 Cash dividends paid on common stock...................................	 	 (6,602)	 	 (6,164)
			   Net cash provided by financing activities...................	 	 24,948	 	 102,463
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents...................		  (70,667)		  28,184
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year...........................	 	 88,107	 	 59,923
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year......................................	 $	 17,440	 $	 88,107

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
	 Cash paid for interest..............................................................	 $	 2,094	 $	 2,196
	 Cash paid for income taxes.....................................................		  8,490		  3,610
	 Non-cash transactions:
		  Change in AOCI, net of taxes...........................................		  (2,937)		  (4,936)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these 
consolidated financial statements.
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CAMBRIDGE BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

1.    THE BUSINESS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Cambridge 
Bancorp (the “Corporation”) and its wholly owned subsidiary, Cambridge Trust Company 
(the “Bank”), and the Bank’s subsidiaries, Cambridge Trust Company of New Hampshire, 
Inc., CTC Security Corporation, CTC Security Corporation II and CTC Security 
Corporation III. References to the Corporation herein relate to the consolidated group of 
companies. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in 
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

The Corporation is a state chartered, federally registered bank holding company 
headquartered in Cambridge, Massachusetts, that was incorporated in 1983. The 
Corporation is closely held and has less than two thousand shareholders of record and, 
accordingly, is not required to file quarterly, annual or other public reports with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). The Corporation is the sole stockholder of 
the Bank, a Massachusetts trust company chartered in 1890 which is a community-oriented 
commercial bank. The community banking business, the Corporation’s only reportable 
operating segment, consists of commercial banking, consumer banking, and trust and 
investment management services and is managed as a single strategic unit.

The Bank offers a full range of commercial and consumer banking services through 
its network of 12 full-service banking offices in Massachusetts. The Bank is engaged 
principally in the business of attracting deposits from the public and investing those 
deposits. The Bank invests those funds in various types of loans, including residential and 
commercial real estate, and a variety of commercial and consumer loans. The Bank also 
invests its deposits and borrowed funds in investment securities and has three wholly-
owned Massachusetts Security Corporations, CTC Security Corporation, CTC Security 
Corporation II and CTC Security Corporation III, for this purpose. Deposits at the Bank are 
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) for the maximum amount 
permitted by FDIC Regulations.

Trust and investment management services are offered through the Bank’s full-service 
branches in Massachusetts, a wealth management office located in Boston, and two wealth 
management offices located in New Hampshire. The Bank also utilizes its non-depository 
trust company, Cambridge Trust Company of New Hampshire, Inc., in providing wealth 
management services in New Hampshire. The assets held for wealth management 
customers are not assets of the Bank and, accordingly, are not reflected in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets. Total assets managed on behalf of wealth management clients 
were approximately $2,290,000,000 and $2,140,000,000 at December 31, 2014 and 2013, 
respectively.

2.    SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation
The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles (“GAAP”) and general practices within the banking industry.
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Use of Estimates
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of 
the date of the balance sheet and revenues and expenses for the period. Actual results could 
differ from these estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to change 
relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses and review of goodwill for 
impairment.

Reclassifications
Certain amounts in the prior year’s financial statements may have been reclassified to 
conform with the current year’s presentation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, amounts due from banks and overnight 
investments.

Investment Securities
Investment securities are classified as either ‘held to maturity’ or ‘available for sale’ in 
accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (“FASB”) Accounting 
Standards Codification (“ASC”) 320, “Investments – Debt and Equity Securities.” 
Debt securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity 
are classified as held to maturity and are carried at cost, adjusted for the amortization 
of premiums and the accretion of discounts, using the effective-yield method. U.S. 
Government Sponsored Enterprise (“GSE”) obligations represent debt securities issued 
by the Federal Farm Credit Bank (“FFCB”), the Federal Home Loan Banks (“FHLB”), the 
Government National Mortgage Association (“GNMA”), the Federal National Mortgage 
Association (“FNMA”) or the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (“FHLMC”). 
Mortgage-backed securities represent Pass-Through Certificates and Collateralized 
Mortgage Obligations (“CMOs”) either issued by, or collateralized by securities issued by, 
GNMA, FNMA or FHLMC. Mortgage-backed securities are adjusted for amortization of 
premiums and accretion of discounts, using the effective-yield method over the estimated 
average lives of the investments.

Debt and equity securities not classified as held to maturity are classified as available for 
sale and carried at fair value with unrealized after-tax gains and losses reported net as a 
separate component of stockholders’ equity. Stockholders’ equity included net unrealized 
losses of $148,000 and $3,432,000 at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. These 
amounts are net of deferred taxes receivable of $80,000 and $1,847,000, in each of the 
respective years. The Corporation classifies its securities based on its intention at the time 
of purchase.

Declines in the fair value of investment securities below their amortized cost that are 
deemed to be other-than-temporary are reflected in earnings as realized losses to the extent 
the impairment is related to credit losses. The amount of the impairment related to other 
factors is recognized in other comprehensive income. In estimating other-than-temporary 
impairment losses, management considers (1) the length of time and the extent to which 
the fair value has been less than cost; (2) the financial condition and near-term prospects of 
the issuer; and (3) the Corporation’s intent to sell the security or whether it is more likely 
than not that the Corporation will be required to sell the debt security before its anticipated 
recovery.
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Loans and the Allowance for Loan Losses
Loans are reported at the amount of their outstanding principal, including deferred loan 
origination fees and costs, reduced by unearned discounts and the allowance for loan losses. 
Loan origination fees, net of related direct incremental loan origination costs, are deferred 
and recognized as income over the contractual lives of the related loans as an adjustment 
to the loan yield, using a method which approximates the interest method. Unearned 
discount is recognized as an adjustment to the loan yield, using the interest method over 
the contractual life of the related loan. When a loan is paid off, the unamortized portion of 
net fees or unearned discount is recognized as interest income.

Loans are considered delinquent when a payment of principal and/or interest becomes past 
due 30 days following its scheduled payment due date.

Loans on which the accrual of interest has been discontinued are designated non-accrual 
loans. Accrual of interest income is discontinued when concern exists as to the collectability 
of principal or interest, or typically when a loan becomes over 90 days delinquent. 
Additionally, when a loan is placed on non-accrual status, all interest previously accrued 
but not collected is reversed against current period income. Loans are removed from non-
accrual when they become less than 90 days past due and when concern no longer exists 
as to the collectability of principal or interest. Interest collected on non-accruing loans is 
either applied against principal or reported as income according to management’s judgment 
as to the collectability of principal.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable 
that the Corporation will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or 
interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Under certain 
circumstances, the Corporation may restructure the terms of a loan as a concession to 
a borrower. These restructured loans are generally also considered impaired loans. 
Impairment is measured on a loan-by-loan basis for commercial mortgage and commercial 
loans by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s 
effective interest rate, the loan’s obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral 
if the loan is collateral dependent. Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are 
collectively evaluated for impairment. Accordingly, the Corporation does not separately 
identify individual residential mortgage, home equity or consumer loans for impairment 
disclosures unless they have been modified in a troubled debt restructuring.

The provision for loan losses and the level of the allowance for loan losses reflects 
management’s estimate of probable loan losses inherent in the loan portfolio at the balance 
sheet date. Management uses a systematic process and methodology to establish the 
allowance for loan losses each quarter. To determine the total allowance for loan losses, 
an estimate is made by management of the allowance needed for each of the following 
segments of the loan portfolio: (a) residential mortgage loans, (b) commercial mortgage 
loans, (c) home equity loans, (d) commercial & industrial loans, and (e) consumer loans. 
Portfolio segments are further disaggregated into classes of loans. The establishment 
of the allowance for each portfolio segment is based on a process consistently applied 
that evaluates the risk characteristics relevant to each portfolio segment and takes into 
consideration multiple internal and external factors. Internal factors include (a) historic 
levels and trends in charge-offs, delinquencies, risk ratings, and foreclosures, (b) level 
and changes in industry, geographic and credit concentrations, (c) underwriting policies 
and adherence to such policies, and (d) the experience of, and any changes in, lending and 
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credit personnel. External factors include (a) conditions and trends in the local and national 
economy and (b) levels and trends in national delinquent and non-performing loans. An 
additional unallocated component is maintained based on a judgmental process whereby 
management considers qualitative and quantitative assessments of other environmental 
factors not included above.

The Bank evaluates certain loans within the commercial & industrial, commercial mortgage 
and commercial construction loan portfolios individually for specific impairment. A loan 
is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that 
the Bank will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due 
according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Loans that experience insignificant 
payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Loans are 
selected for evaluation based upon internal risk rating, delinquency status, or non-accrual 
status. A specific allowance amount is allocated to an individual loan when such loan has 
been deemed impaired and when the amount of the probable loss is able to be estimated. 
Estimates of loss may be determined by the present value of anticipated future cash flows, 
the loan’s observable fair market value, or the fair value of the collateral, if the loan is 
collateral dependent. 

Risk characteristics relevant to each portfolio segment are as follows:

Residential mortgage and home equity loans – The Bank generally does not originate loans 
in these segments with a loan-to-value ratio greater than 80 percent, unless covered by 
private mortgage insurance, and in all cases not greater than a loan-to-value ratio of 95 
percent. The Bank does not grant subprime loans. Loans in these segments are secured 
by one-to-four family residential real estate and repayment is primarily dependent on the 
credit quality of the individual borrower.

Commercial mortgage loans – The Bank generally does not originate loans in this segment 
with a loan-to-value ratio greater than 75 percent. Loans in this segment are secured by 
owner-occupied and nonowner-occupied commercial real estate and repayment is primarily 
dependent on the cash flows of the property (if nonowner-occupied) or of the business (if 
owner-occupied).

Commercial loans – Loans in this segment are made to businesses and are generally 
secured by equipment, accounts receivable or inventory, as well as the personal guarantees 
of the principal owners of the business and repayment is primarily dependent on the cash 
flows generated by the business.

Consumer loans – Loans in this segment are made to individuals and can be secured 
or unsecured. Repayment is primarily dependent on the credit quality of the individual 
borrower.

The majority of the Bank’s loans are concentrated in Eastern Massachusetts and therefore 
the overall health of the local economy, including unemployment rates, vacancy rates, and 
consumer spending levels, can have a material effect on the credit quality of all of these 
portfolio segments.
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The process to determine the allowance for loan losses requires management to exercise 
considerable judgment regarding the risk characteristics of the loan portfolio segments and 
the effect of relevant internal and external factors.

The provision for loan losses charged to operations is based on management’s judgment of 
the amount necessary to maintain the allowance at a level adequate to provide for inherent 
loan losses. When management believes that the collectability of a loan’s principal balance, 
or portions thereof, is unlikely, the principal amount is charged against the allowance for 
loan losses. Recoveries on loans that have been previously charged off are credited to the 
allowance for loan losses as received. The allowance is an estimate, and ultimate losses 
may vary from current estimates. As adjustments become necessary, they are reported in 
the results of operations through the provision for loan losses in the period in which they 
become known.

Residential mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are 
classified as held for sale at the time of their origination and are carried at the lower of cost 
or fair value. Changes in fair value relating to loans held for sale below the loans cost basis 
are charged against earnings. Gains and losses on the actual sale of the residential loans are 
recorded in earnings as net gains (losses) on loans held for sale.

Rights to service mortgage loans for others are recognized as an asset. The total cost of 
originated loans that are sold with servicing rights retained is allocated between the loan 
servicing rights and the loans without servicing rights based on their relative fair values. 
Capitalized loan servicing rights are included in other assets and are amortized as an offset 
to other income over the period of estimated net servicing income. They are evaluated for 
impairment at each reporting date based on their fair value. Impairment is measured on an 
aggregated basis according to interest rate band and period of origination. The fair value 
is estimated based on the present value of expected cash flows, incorporating assumptions 
for discount rate, prepayment speed and servicing cost. Any impairment is recognized as 
a charge to earnings.

Bank Owned Life Insurance
Bank owned life insurance (“BOLI”) represents life insurance on the lives of certain 
employees who have provided positive consent allowing the Bank to be the beneficiary of 
such policies. Since the Bank is the primary beneficiary of the insurance policies, increases 
in the cash value of the policies, as well as insurance proceeds received, are recorded 
in other noninterest income, and are not subject to income taxes. The cash value of the 
policies is included in other assets. The Bank reviews the financial strength of the insurance 
carriers prior to the purchase of BOLI and at least annually thereafter.

Banking Premises and Equipment
Land is stated at cost. Buildings, leasehold improvements and equipment are stated at cost, 
less accumulated depreciation and amortization, which is computed using the straight-line 
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets or the terms of the leases, if shorter. 
The cost of ordinary maintenance and repairs is charged to expense when incurred.

Other Real Estate Owned
Other real estate owned (“OREO”) consists of properties formerly pledged as collateral 
to loans, which have been acquired by the Bank through foreclosure proceedings or 
acceptance of a deed in lieu of foreclosure. Upon transfer of a loan to foreclosure status, an 
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appraisal is obtained and any excess of the loan balance over the fair value, less estimated 
costs to sell, is charged against the allowance for loan losses. Expenses and subsequent 
adjustments to the fair value are treated as other operating expense.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets 
acquired in a business combination. Goodwill and intangible assets that are not amortized 
are tested for impairment, based on their fair values, at least annually. Identifiable intangible 
assets that are subject to amortization are also reviewed for impairment based on their fair 
value. Any impairment is recognized as a charge to earnings and the adjusted carrying 
amount of the intangible asset becomes its new accounting basis. The remaining useful 
life of an intangible asset that is being amortized is also evaluated each reporting period 
to determine whether events and circumstances warrant a revision to the remaining period 
of amortization.

Income Taxes
The Corporation and its subsidiaries file income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, 
and in the state of Massachusetts and other states as required.

The Corporation uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Deferred 
tax assets and liabilities are reflected at currently enacted income tax rates applicable to the 
period in which the deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be realized or settled. 
As changes in tax laws or rates are enacted, deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted 
through the provision for income taxes. Deferred tax assets are reviewed quarterly and 
reduced by a valuation allowance if, based upon the information available, it is more likely 
than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits, if incurred, are recognized as a 
component of income tax expense.

Wealth Management Income
Income from investment management and fiduciary activities is recognized on the accrual 
basis of accounting.

Pension and Retirement Plans
The Corporation sponsors a defined benefit pension plan and a postretirement health 
care plan covering substantially all employees hired before May 2, 2011. Benefits for the 
pension plan are based primarily on years of service and the employee’s average monthly 
pay during the five highest consecutive plan years of the employee’s final ten years. 
Benefits for the postretirement health care plan are based on years of service. Expense for 
both of these plans is recognized over the employee’s service life utilizing the projected 
unit credit actuarial cost method. Contributions are periodically made to the pension plan 
so as to comply with the Employee Retirement Income Security Act (“ERISA”) funding 
standards and the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

The Corporation also has a non-qualified retirement plan to provide supplemental retirement 
benefits to certain executives. Expense for this plan is recognized over the executive’s 
service life utilizing the projected unit credit actuarial cost method.
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Stock-Based Compensation
The cost of stock-based awards (stock options, restricted stock and/or restricted stock 
units of the Corporation) is determined at the grant date as measured by the fair value of 
the award. Stock-based awards requiring future service are recognized as compensation 
expense over the relevant service period. Stock-based awards that do not require future 
service are expensed immediately. The Corporation estimates expected forfeitures in 
determining compensation expense.

Fair Value Measurements
ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures” establishes a fair value hierarchy 
that gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets and the lowest priority to 
unobservable data and requires fair value measurements to be disclosed by level within the 
hierarchy. The three broad levels defined by the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 – Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
as of the reported date. The type of financial instruments included in Level 1 are highly 
liquid cash instruments with quoted prices such as government or agency securities, listed 
equities and money market securities, as well as listed derivative instruments.

Level 2 – Pricing inputs are other than quoted prices in active markets, which are either 
directly or indirectly observable as of the reported date. The nature of these financial 
instruments includes cash instruments for which quoted prices are available but traded less 
frequently, derivative instruments whose fair value has been derived using a model where 
inputs to the model are directly observable in the market, or can be derived principally 
from or corroborated by observable market data, and instruments that are fair valued using 
other financial instruments, the parameters of which can be directly observed. Instruments 
which are generally included in this category are corporate bonds and loans, mortgage 
whole loans, municipal bonds and over-the-counter derivatives.

Level 3 – Instruments that have little to no pricing observability as of the reported 
date. These financial instruments do not have two-way markets and are measured using 
management’s best estimate of fair value, where the inputs into the determination of 
fair value require significant management judgment to estimation. Instruments that are 
included in this category generally include certain commercial mortgage loans, certain 
private equity investments, distressed debt, non-investment grade residual interests in 
securitizations, as well as certain highly structured over-the-counter derivative contracts.

Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing net income by the weighted average 
number of common shares outstanding for each period presented. Diluted earnings per 
share are computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common 
shares outstanding plus the dilutive effect of stock options outstanding.

Subsequent Events
Management has reviewed events occurring through February 27, 2015, the date the 
consolidated financial statements were issued and determined that no subsequent events 
occurred requiring accrual or disclosure.
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3.    RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In January 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2014-04, “Receivables 
– Troubled Debt Restructuring by Creditors (Subtopic 310-40) – Reclassification of 
Residential Real Estate Collateralized Consumer Mortgage Loans upon Foreclosure” 
(“ASU 2014-04”). This update is intended to clarify when a creditor should be considered 
to have received physical possession of residential real estate property collateralizing a 
consumer mortgage loan such that the loan should be derecognized and the real estate 
recognized. This new guidance is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within 
those years, beginning after December 15, 2014 and interim periods within annual periods 
beginning after December 15, 2015. The Corporation does not expect ASU 2014-04 to 
have a material effect on its consolidated financial statements.

4.    CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, cash and due from banks totaled $17,440,000 and 
$88,107,000, respectively. Of this amount, $9,830,000 and $8,977,000, respectively, were 
maintained to satisfy the reserve requirements of the Federal Reserve Bank of Boston 
(“FRB Boston”). Additionally, at both December 31, 2014 and 2013, $1,000,000 was 
pledged to the New Hampshire Banking Department relating to Cambridge Trust Company 
of New Hampshire, Inc.’s operations in that State.

5.    INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Investment securities have been classified in the accompanying consolidated balance 
sheets according to management’s intent. The carrying amounts of securities and their 
approximate fair values were as follows:

	 	 December 31, 2014	
	 Amortized	 	 Unrealized	 		  Fair
	 	 Cost	 	 	 Gains	 	 	 Losses	 	 	 Value	
	 (In thousands)
Securities available for sale:
	 U.S. GSE obligations.............................	 $	 91,033	 $	 93	 $	 (655)	 $	 90,471
	 Mortgage-backed securities...................		  245,309		  2,571		  (2,200)		  245,680
	 Corporate debt securities........................		  3,005		  14		  (3)		  3,016
	 Mutual funds..........................................	 	 672	 	 —	 	 (48)	 	 624
		  Total securities available for sale.....	 	 340,019	 	 2,678	 	 (2,906)	 	 339,791
Securities held to maturity:
	 Mortgage-backed securities...................		  2,176		  117		  —		  2,293
	 Municipal securities...............................	 	 77,470	 	 3,681	 	 (13)	 	 81,138
		  Total securities held to maturity.......	 	 79,646	 	 3,798	 	 (13)	 	 83,431
		  Total investment securities...............	 $	 419,665	 $	 6,476	 $	 (2,919)	 $	 423,222
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	 	 December 31, 2013	
	 Amortized	 	 Unrealized	 		  Fair
	 	 Cost	 	 	 Gains	 	 	 Losses	 	 	 Value	
	 (In thousands)
Securities available for sale:
	 U.S. GSE obligations.............................	 $	 75,056	 $	 54	 $	 (1,866)	 $	 73,244
	 Mortgage-backed securities...................		  296,336		  2,594		  (6,608)		  292,322
	 Corporate debt securities........................		  22,008		  622		  (16)		  22,614
	 Mutual funds..........................................	 	 672	 	 —	 	 (59)	 	 613
		  Total securities available for sale.....	 	 394,072	 	 3,270	 	 (8,549)	 	 388,793
Securities held to maturity:
	 Mortgage-backed securities...................		  3,327		  214		  —		  3,541
	 Municipal securities...............................	 	 55,854	 	 2,239	 	 (179)	 	 57,914
		  Total securities held to maturity.......	 	 59,181	 	 2,453	 	 (179)	 	 61,455
		  Total investment securities...............	 $	 453,253	 $	 5,723	 $	 (8,728)	 $	 450,248

All of the Corporation’s mortgage-backed securities have been issued by, or are collateralized by 
securities issued by, either GNMA, FNMA or FHLMC.

The amortized cost and fair value of debt investments, aggregated by contractual maturity, are shown 
below. Maturities of mortgage-backed securities do not take into consideration scheduled amortization 
or prepayments. Actual maturities will differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the 
right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

					     After One, But			   After Five, But
	 	 Within One Year	 	 	 Within Five Years	 	 	 Within Ten Years	 	 	 After Ten Years	
		 Amortized			  Fair			  Amortized			  Fair			  Amortized		  Fair			  Amortized			  Fair
	 	 Cost	 	 	 Value	 	 	 Cost	 	 	 Value	 	 	 Cost	 	 	 Value	 	 	 Cost	 	 	 Value	
	 (In thousands)

At December 31, 2014:
	 Debt securities
	   available for sale:
		  U.S. GSE
		    obligations............ 	 $	 —	 $	 —	 $	 81,042	 $	 80,566	 $	 9,991	 $	 9,905	 $	 —	 $	 —
		  Mortgage-backed
		    securities............... 		  61		  64		  2,087		  2,212		  839		  911		  242,322		  242,493
		  Corporate debt
		    securities............... 	 	 2,005	 	 2,002	 	 —	 	 —	 	 1,000	 	 1,014	 	 —	 	 —
			   Total debt
			     securities
			     available
			     for sale.............. 	 	 2,066	 	 2,066	 	 83,129	 	 82,778	 	 11,830	 	 11,830	 	 242,322	 	 242,493
	 Debt securities held
	   to maturity:
		  Mortgage-backed
		    securities............... 		  10		  11		  2,089		  2,201		  4		  4		  73		  77
		  Municipal
		    securities............... 	 	 942	 	 961	 	 16,137	 	 16,622	 	 32,138	 	 33,948	 	 28,253	 	 29,607
			   Total debt
			     securities held
			     to maturity......... 	 	 952	 	 972	 	 18,226	 	 18,823	 	 32,142	 	 33,952	 	 28,326	 	 29,684
			   Total debt
			     securities........... 	 $	 3,018	 $	 3,038	 $	101,355	 $	101,601	 $	43,972	 $	45,782	 $	270,648	 $	272,177
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The following table shows the Corporation’s securities with gross unrealized losses, 
aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been 
in a continuous loss position:

	 	 Less than One Year	 	 	 One Year or Longer	 	 	 Total		
		  Fair		  Unrealized			  Fair		  Unrealized			  Fair			  Unrealized
	 	 Value	 	 	 Losses	 	 	 Value	 	 	 Losses	 	 	 Value	 	 	 Losses	
	 (In thousands)
At December 31, 2014:
	 U.S. GSE obligations.............. 	 $	 15,018	 $	 (26)	 $	 44,351	 $	 (629)	 $	 59,369	 $	 (655)
	 Mortgage-backed securities.... 		  24,005		  (103)		  121,933		  (2,097)		  145,938		  (2,200)
	 Corporate debt securities........ 		  —		  —		  2,002		  (3)		  2,002		  (3)
	 Municipal securities................ 	 	 1,336	 	 (3)	 	 836	 	 (10)	 	 2,172	 	 (13)
		  Subtotal, debt securities...... 		  40,359		  (132)		  169,122		  (2,739)		  209,481		  (2,871)
	 Mutual funds........................... 	 	 —	 	 —	 	 624	 	 (48)	 	 624	 	 (48)
		  Total temporarily
		    impaired securities............ 	 $	 40,359	 $	 (132)	 $	169,746	 $	 (2,787)	 $	210,105	 $	 (2,919)

At December 31, 2013:
	 U.S. GSE obligations.............. 	 $	 63,176	 $	 (1,866)	 $	 —	 $	 —	 $	 63,176	 $	 (1,866)
	 Mortgage-backed securities.... 		  205,790		  (5,726)		  21,182		  (882)		  226,972		  (6,608)
	 Corporate debt securities........ 		  2,994		  (16)		  —		  —		  2,994		  (16)
	 Municipal securities................ 	 	 6,636	 	 (121)	 	 514	 	 (58)	 	 7,150	 	 (179)
		  Subtotal, debt securities...... 		  278,596		  (7,729)		  21,696		  (940)		  300,292		  (8,669)
	 Mutual funds........................... 	 	 —	 	 —	 	 613	 	 (59)	 	 613	 	 (59)
		  Total temporarily
		    impaired securities............ 	 $	278,596	 $	 (7,729)	 $	 22,309	 $	 (999)	 $	300,905	 $	 (8,728)

Securities are evaluated by management for other-than-temporary impairment on at least 
a quarterly basis, and more frequently when economic or market conditions warrant such 
evaluation. Consideration is given to (1) the length of time and the extent to which the fair 
value has been less than cost; (2) the financial condition and near-term prospects of the 
issuer; and (3) the intent and ability of the Corporation to retain its investment in the issuer 
for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. As of 
December 31, 2014, sixty-two debt securities and one equity security had gross unrealized 
losses, with an aggregate depreciation of 1.37% from the Corporation’s amortized cost 
basis. The largest unrealized loss percentage of any single security was 7.10% (or $48,000) 
of its amortized cost. The largest unrealized dollar loss of any single security was $123,000 
(or 3.03%) of its amortized cost. The Corporation believes that the nature and duration of 
impairment on its debt security positions are primarily a function of interest rate movements 
and changes in investment spreads, and does not consider full repayment of principal on 
the reported debt obligations to be at risk. Since nearly all of these securities are rated 
“investment grade” and a) the Corporation does not intend to sell these securities before 
recovery, and b) that it is more likely than not that the Corporation will not be required to 
sell these securities before recovery, the Corporation does not consider these securities to 
be other-than-temporarily impaired as of December 31, 2014.

The following table sets forth information regarding sales of investment securities and the 
resulting gains or losses from such sales.

	 	 Year Ended December 31,	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
	 (In thousands)
Amortized cost of securities sold............................................	 $	 28,940	 $	 34,436
Gain realized on securities sold..............................................	 	 1,073	 	 1,121
	 Proceeds from securities sold............................................	 $	 30,013	 $	 35,557
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6.    LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The Bank originates loans to businesses and individuals on both a collateralized and an 
uncollateralized basis. The Bank’s customer base is concentrated in Eastern Massachusetts. 
The Bank has diversified the risk in its commercial loan portfolio by lending to businesses 
in a wide range of industries while maintaining no significant individual industry 
concentration. The majority of loans to individuals are collateralized by residential real 
estate, marketable securities or other assets.

Loans outstanding are detailed by category as follows:

	 	 December 31,	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
	 (In thousands)

Residential real estate:
	 Mortgages - fixed rate (20 & 30 year)....................................	 $	 151,973	 $	 134,498
	 Mortgages - fixed rate (15 year)..............................................		  117,753		  123,627
	 Mortgages - fixed rate (10 year)..............................................		  53,054		  56,426
	 Mortgages - adjustable rate.....................................................		  183,796		  143,159
	 Deferred costs net of unearned fees........................................	 	 640	 	 466
		  Total residential real estate................................................		  507,216		  458,176

Commercial real estate:
	 Mortgages - nonowner occupied.............................................		  370,871		  304,509
	 Mortgages - owner occupied...................................................		  46,954		  44,999
	 Construction............................................................................		  23,879		  13,584
	 Deferred costs net of unearned fees........................................	 	 138	 	 202
		  Total commercial real estate.............................................		  441,842		  363,294

Home equity:
	 Home equity - lines of credit..................................................		  53,492		  43,521
	 Home equity - term loans........................................................		  2,934		  2,985
	 Deferred costs net of unearned fees........................................	 	 153	 	 129
		  Total home equity.............................................................		  56,579		  46,635

Commercial:
	 Commercial and industrial......................................................		  49,263		  50,513
	 Deferred costs net of unearned fees........................................	 	 229	 	 245
		  Total commercial..............................................................		  49,492		  50,758

Consumer:
	 Secured....................................................................................		  23,749		  20,931
	 Unsecured...............................................................................		  1,873		  2,643
	 Deferred costs net of unearned fees........................................	 	 15	 	 14
		  Total consumer..................................................................	 	 25,637	 	 23,588

		  Total loans.........................................................................	 $	 1,080,766	 $	 942,451

Certain directors and officers of the Corporation are customers of the Bank. Loans to these 
parties are made in the ordinary course of business at the Bank’s normal credit terms, 
including interest rate and collateral requirements, and do not represent more than a normal 
risk of collection. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, total loans outstanding to these related 
parties were $842,000 and $729,000, respectively. During 2014, $280,000 of additions and 
$167,000 of repayments were made to these loans, compared to $50,000 of additions and 
$73,000 of repayments made during 2013.
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The following table sets forth information regarding non-performing loans.

	 	 December 31,	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
	 (In thousands)

Non-accrual loans...................................................................	 $	 1,620	 $	 1,582
Loans past due >90 days, but still accruing............................		  9		  121
Troubled debt restructurings...................................................	 	 —	 	 —
	 Total non-performing loans...............................................	 $	 1,629	 $	 1,703

A breakdown of non-accrual loans receivable is as follows:

	 	 December 31,	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
	 (In thousands)

Non-accrual loans:
	 Residential mortgage loans.............................................. 	 $	 846	 $	 645
	 Commercial mortgage loans............................................ 		  337		  379
	 Home equity loans........................................................... 		  326		  340
	 Commercial loans............................................................ 		  106		  218
	 Consumer loans................................................................ 	 	 5	 	 3
		  Total........................................................................... 	 $	 1,620	 $	 1,585

The following table contains period-end balances of loans receivable disaggregated by 
credit quality indicator:

	 	 December 31, 2014	
		  (In thousands)

		 Residential			  Home
	 	 Mortgages		 	 Equity	 	 	Consumer	

Credit risk profile based on payment activity:
	 Performing......................................................	 $	 506,370	 $	 56,253	 $	 25,632
	 Non-performing..............................................	 	 846	 	 326	 	 5
		  Total..........................................................	 $	 507,216	 $	 56,579	 $	 25,637

		 Commercial 
	 	Mortgages	 	 Commercial

Credit risk profile by internally assigned grade:
	 Pass...............................................................................................	 $	 440,085	 $	 43,508
	 Special mention.............................................................................		  1,177		  3,436
	 Substandard...................................................................................		  580		  2,548
	 Doubtful........................................................................................	 	 —	 	 —
		  Total........................................................................................	 $	 441,842	 $	 49,492

With respect to residential real estate, home equity and consumer loans, the Bank utilizes 
the following categories as indicators of credit quality:

•	 Performing – These loans are accruing and are considered having low to moderate 
risk.

•	 Non-performing – These loans either have been placed on non-accrual, or are past 
due more than 90 days but are still accruing, and may contain greater than average 
risk.
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With respect to commercial real estate and commercial loans, the Bank utilizes a ten grade 
internal loan rating system as an indicator of credit quality. The grades are as follows:

•	 Loans rated 1-6 (Pass) – These loans are considered “pass” rated with low to average 
risk.

•	 Loans rated 7 (Special Mention) – These loans have potential weaknesses warranting 
close attention which if left uncorrected may result in deterioration of the credit at 
some future date.

•	 Loans rated 8 (Substandard) – These loans have well-defined weaknesses that 
jeopardize the orderly liquidation of the debt under the original loan terms. Loss 
potential exists but is not identifiable in any one customer.

•	 Loans rated 9 (Doubtful) – These loans have pronounced weaknesses that make full 
collection highly questionable and improbable.

•	 Loans rated 10 (Loss) – These loans are considered uncollectible and continuance as 
a bankable asset is not warranted.

The following table contains period-end balances of loans receivable disaggregated by past 
due status:

	 	 December 31, 2014	
																							                      Greater
																							                      Than 90
								        30 - 59			   60 - 89			  90 Days			  Total			   Total			  Days But
				    	 Current	 	 	 Days	 	 	 Days	 		 or Greater		 Past Due	 	 Loans	 	 	Accruing
	 (In thousands)

Loans receivable:
	 Residential mortgage
	   loans...............................	 $	 506,227	 $	 170	 $	 151	 $	 668	 $	 989	 $	 507,216	 $	 —
	 Commercial mortgage
	   loans...............................		  441,217		  413		  212		  —		  625		  441,842		  —
	 Home equity loans...........		  56,260		  —		  —		  319		  319		  56,579		  —
	 Commercial loans............		  49,300		  164		  19		  9		  192		  49,492		  9
	 Consumer loans................	 	 25,634	 	 3	 	 —	 	 —	 	 3	 	 25,637	 	 —
		  Total...........................	 $	1,078,638	 $	 750	 $	 382	 $	 996	 $	2,128	 $	1,080,766	 $	 9

The following table contains period-end balances of the allowance for loan losses and 
related loans receivable disaggregated by impairment method:

	 	 December 31, 2014	
		 Residential		 Commercial			  Home
	 	Mortgages		 	 Mortgages	 	 	 Equity	 		 Commercial			  Consumer	 	Unallocated		 	 Total	
	 (In thousands)
Allowance for loan losses:
	 Individually evaluated
	   for impairment............... 	 $	 —	 $	 —	 $	 —	 $	 —	 $	 —	 $	 —	 $	 —
	 Collectively evaluated
	   for impairment............... 	 	 5,174	 	 7,285	 	 679	 	 750	 	 328	 	 53	 	 14,269
		  Total............................. 	 $	 5,174	 $	 7,285	 $	 679	 $	 750	 $	 328	 $	 53	 $	 14,269

Loans receivable:
	 Individually evaluated
	   for impairment............... 	 $	 —	 $	 337	 $	 —	 $	 157	 $	 —			   $	 494
	 Collectively evaluated
	   for impairment............... 	 	 507,216	 	 441,505	 	 56,579	 	 49,335	 	 25,637			   $	1,080,272
		  Total............................. 	 $	507,216	 $	 441,842	 $	56,579	 $	49,492	 $	25,637			   $	1,080,766
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	 	 December 31, 2013	
		 Residential		 Commercial			  Home
	 	Mortgages		 	 Mortgages	 	 	 Equity	 		 Commercial			  Consumer	 	Unallocated		 	 Total	
	 (In thousands)
Allowance for loan losses:
	 Individually evaluated
	   for impairment............... 	 $	 —	 $	 —	 $	 —	 $	 —	 $	 —	 $	 —	 $	 —
	 Collectively evaluated
	   for impairment............... 	 	 4,490	 	 5,954	 	 476	 	 845	 	 302	 	 641	 	 12,708
		  Total............................. 	 $	 4,490	 $	 5,954	 $	 476	 $	 845	 $	 302	 $	 641	 $	 12,708

Loans receivable:
	 Individually evaluated
	   for impairment............... 	 $	 —	 $	 379	 $	 —	 $	 131	 $	 —			   $	 510
	 Collectively evaluated
	   for impairment............... 	 	 458,176	 	 362,915	 	 46,635	 	 50,627	 	 23,588			   	 941,941
		  Total............................. 	 $	458,176	 $	 363,294	 $	46,635	 $	50,758	 $	23,588			   $	 942,451

As discussed in Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, the provision for loan 
losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management in order to determine the adequacy 
of the allowance for loan losses.

During the 3rd Quarter of 2014, the Corporation updated its methodology for determining 
its allowance for loan losses to better reflect changes in the risk profile of its loan portfolio 
including greater disaggregation of environmental factors, an update to assigned risk 
allocations for qualitative factors, and an update to the historical loss experience term look-
back period. The impact of that change in methodology is reflected in the following table.

Changes in the allowance for loan losses were as follows:
	 	 December 31, 2014	
		 Residential		 Commercial		  Home
	 	Mortgages		 	 Mortgages		 	 Equity	 		 Commercial			  Consumer	 	Unallocated		 	 Total	
	 (In thousands)

Balance at beginning
  of year............................... 	 $	 4,490	 $	 5,954	 $	 476	 $	 845	 $	 302	 $	 641	 $	12,708
	 Provision for loan losses.. 		  697		  1,232		  113		  (71)		  (21)		  (400)		  1,550
	 Change in methodology... 		  —		  90		  90		  (6)		  14		  (188)		  —
	 Loans charged off............ 		  (13)		  —		  —		  (20)		  (12)		  —		  (45)
	 Recoveries....................... 	 	 —	 	 9	 	 —	 	 2	 	 45	 	 —	 	 56
Balance at end of year......... 	 $	 5,174	 $	 7,285	 $	 679	 $	 750	 $	 328	 $	 53	 $	14,269

An analysis of mortgage servicing rights follows:

	 Mortgage
	 Servicing	 Valuation
	 	 Rights	 	 	Allowance	 	 Total	
	 (In thousands)
Balance at December 31, 2012.............................. 	 $	 216	 $	 (1)	 $	 215
	 Mortgage servicing rights capitalized.............. 		  263		  —		  263
	 Amortization charged against servicing
	   income............................................................ 		  (83)		  —		  (83)
	 Change in impairment reserve......................... 	 	 —	 	 (11)	 	 (11)
Balance at December 31, 2013.............................. 		  396		  (12)		  384
	 Mortgage servicing rights capitalized.............. 		  63		  —		  63
	 Amortization charged against servicing
	   income............................................................ 		  (127)		  —		  (127)
	 Change in impairment reserve......................... 	 	 —	 	 12	 	 12
Balance at December 31, 2014.............................. 	 $	 332	 $	 —	 $	 332
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7.    FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK OF BOSTON STOCK

As a voluntary member of the FHLB of Boston (“FHLB Boston”), the Bank is required 
to invest in stock of the FHLB Boston (which is considered a restricted equity security) in 
an amount based upon its outstanding advances from the FHLB Boston. At December 31, 
2014, the Bank’s investment in FHLB Boston stock exceeded its required investment by 
$2,530,000. No market exists for shares of this stock. The Bank’s cost for FHLB Boston 
stock is equal to its par value. Upon redemption of the stock, which is at the discretion of 
the FHLB Boston, the Bank would receive an amount equal to the par value of the stock. 
At its discretion, the FHLB Boston may also declare dividends on its stock.

The Bank’s investment in FHLB Boston stock is reviewed for impairment at each reporting 
date based on the ultimate recoverability of the cost basis of the stock. As of December 31, 
2014, no impairment has been recognized.

8.    BANKING PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

A summary of the cost and accumulated depreciation and amortization of property, 
leasehold improvements and equipment is presented below:

	 	 December 31,	 	 Estimated
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	 	 Useful Lives
	 (In thousands)

Land....................................................................... 	 $	 1,116	 $	 1,116
Building and leasehold improvements................... 		  12,506		  12,577	 1-30 years
Equipment, including vaults.................................. 		  9,215		  16,399	 3-20 years
Construction in process.......................................... 	 	 290	 	 2,620
	 Subtotal............................................................ 		  23,127		  32,712
Accumulated depreciation and amortization......... 	 	 (14,760)	 	 (22,761)
	 Total................................................................. 	 $	 8,367	 $	 9,951

Total depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 amounted to 
approximately $1,817,000 and $1,569,000, respectively, and is included in occupancy and 
equipment expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

9.    GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the carrying value of goodwill, which is included in other 
assets, totaled $412,000. Goodwill and intangible assets that are not amortized are tested 
for impairment, based on their fair values, at least annually. As of December 31, 2014, no 
impairment has been recognized.
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10.    DEPOSITS

Deposits are summarized as follows:

	 	 December 31,	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
	 (In thousands)

Demand deposits (non-interest bearing).................................	 $	 390,286	 $	 382,255
Interest bearing checking........................................................		  352,661		  335,010
Money market.........................................................................		  74,654		  78,410
Savings....................................................................................		  430,040		  489,160
Certificates of deposit under $100,000...................................		  49,768		  52,025
Certificates of deposit $100,000 or greater.............................	 	 73,127	 	 72,187
	 Total deposits....................................................................	 $	 1,370,536	 $	 1,409,047

Certificates of deposit had the following schedule of maturities:

	 	 December 31,	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
	 (In thousands)

Less than 3 months remaining................................................	 $	 41,987	 $	 44,631
3 to 5 months remaining.........................................................		  21,661		  21,546
6 to 11 months remaining........................................................		  24,607		  23,042
12 to 23 months remaining.....................................................		  16,533		  20,707
24 to 47 months remaining.....................................................		  12,515		  10,036
48 months or more remaining.................................................	 	 5,592	 	 4,250
	 Total certificates of deposit...............................................	 $	 122,895	 $	 124,212

Interest expense on certificates of deposit $100,000 or greater was $472,000 and $533,000 
for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

11.    BORROWINGS

Information relating to activity and rates paid on short-term borrowings is presented below:

	 	 Year Ended December 31,	
	 	 2014	 	 	 	 2013	
	 (Dollars in thousands)

Short-term borrowings:
	 Average daily balance.......................................................	 $	 69,915		  $	 42,753
	 Average interest rate.........................................................		  0.21	%		  0.26	%
	 Highest month-end balance...............................................	 $	 117,000		  $	 72,000

There were no long-term borrowings outstanding at either December 31, 2014 or 2013.

All short- and long-term borrowings with the FHLB Boston are secured by the Bank’s 
stock in the FHLB Boston and a blanket lien on “qualified collateral” defined principally 
as 90% of the market value of certain U.S. Government and GSE obligations and 75% of 
the carrying value of certain residential mortgage loans. Based upon collateral pledged, 
the Bank’s unused borrowing capacity with the FHLB Boston at December 31, 2014 was 
approximately $219,596,000.
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The Bank also has a line of credit with the FRB Boston. At December 31, 2014, the Bank 
had pledged commercial real estate and commercial & industrial loans with aggregate 
principal balances of approximately $278,558,000 as collateral for this line of credit. Based 
upon the collateral pledged, the Bank’s unused borrowing capacity with the FRB Boston at 
December 31, 2014 was approximately $138,105,000.

12.    INCOME TAXES

The components of income tax expense were as follows:

	 	 Year Ended December 31,	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
	 (In thousands)
Current:
	 Federal...............................................................................	 $	 6,639	 $	 6,324
	 State...................................................................................	 	 1,356	 	 1,009
		  Total current expense..................................................	 	 7,995	 	 7,333
Deferred:
	 Federal...............................................................................		  (592)		  (340)
	 State...................................................................................	 	 (167)	 	 (96)
		  Total deferred (benefit)/expense.................................	 	 (759)	 	 (436)
		  Total income tax expense............................................	 $	 7,236	 $	 6,897

The following is a reconciliation of the total income tax provision, calculated at statutory 
federal income tax rates, to the income tax provision in the consolidated statements of 
income:

	 	 Year Ended December 31,	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
	 (In thousands)

Provision at statutory rates......................................................	 $	 7,763	 $	 7,363
Increase/(decrease) resulting from:
	 State tax, net of federal tax benefit....................................		  773		  593
	 Tax-exempt income...........................................................		  (938)		  (710)
	 ESOP dividends................................................................		  (189)		  (176)
	 Bank owned life insurance................................................		  (233)		  (228)
	 Other.................................................................................	 	 60	 	 55
	 Total income tax expense..................................................	 $	 7,236	 $	 6,897

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Corporation had no unrecognized tax assets or 
liabilities.
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The Corporation’s net deferred tax asset consisted of the following components:

	 	 December 31,	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
	 (In thousands)

Gross deferred tax assets:
	 Allowance for loan losses.................................................	 $	 5,829	 $	 5,191
	 Accrued retirement benefits..............................................		  3,923		  —
	 Unrealized losses on AFS securities.................................		  80		  1,847
	 Incentive compensation....................................................		  624		  —
	 Depreciation of premises and equipment..........................		  —		  338
	 Equity based compensation...............................................		  273		  231
	 Rent...................................................................................		  253		  228
	 ESOP dividends................................................................		  221		  206
	 Goodwill...........................................................................		  4		  129
	 Other.................................................................................	 	 174	 	 171
		  Total gross deferred tax assets....................................	 	 11,381	 	 8,341
Gross deferred tax liabilities:
	 Accrued retirement benefits..............................................		  —		  (616)
	 Deferred loan origination costs.........................................		  (492)		  (444)
	 Depreciation of premises and equipment..........................		  (340)		  —
	 Mortgage servicing rights.................................................	 	 (135)	 	 (157)
		  Total gross deferred tax liabilities...............................	 	 (967)	 	 (1,217)
		  Net deferred tax asset..................................................	 $	 10,414	 $	 7,124

It is management’s belief, that it is more likely than not, that the reversal of deferred tax 
liabilities and results of future operations will generate sufficient taxable income to realize 
the deferred tax assets. In addition, the Corporation’s net deferred tax asset is supported 
by recoverable income taxes. Therefore, no valuation allowance was required at either 
December 31, 2014 or 2013 for the deferred tax assets. It should be noted, however, that 
factors beyond management’s control, such as the general state of the economy and real 
estate values, can affect future levels of taxable income and that no assurance can be given 
that sufficient taxable income will be generated in future periods to fully absorb deductible 
temporary differences.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Corporation had no unrecognized tax benefits or any 
uncertain tax positions. The Corporation does not expect the total amount of unrecognized 
tax benefits to significantly increase in the next twelve months.

The Corporation’s federal income tax returns are open and subject to examination from the 
2011 tax return year and forward. The Corporation’s state income tax returns are generally 
open from the 2011 and later tax return years based on individual state statute of limitations.

13.    PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS

The Corporation has a noncontributory, defined benefit pension plan (“Pension Plan”) 
covering substantially all employees hired before May 2, 2011. Employees in positions 
requiring at least 1,000 hours of service per year were eligible to participate upon the 
attainment of age 21 and the completion of one year of service. Benefits are based primarily 
on years of service and the employee’s average monthly pay during the five highest 
consecutive plan years of the employee’s final ten years. The Corporation also provides 
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supplemental retirement benefits to certain executive officers of the Corporation under 
the terms of Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreements (“Supplemental Retirement 
Plan”). The Supplemental Retirement Plan became effective on October 1, 1989. Benefits to 
be paid under the plan are contractually agreed upon and detailed in individual agreements 
with the executives. The Corporation uses a December 31 measurement date each year to 
determine the benefit obligations for these plans.

Projected benefit obligations and funded status were as follows:

	 Pension	 Supplemental
	 	 Plan	 	 	 Retirement Plan	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	 	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
	 (In thousands)

Change in projected benefit obligation:
	 Obligation at beginning of year.............	 $	 30,209	 $	 32,580	 $	 6,216	 $	 6,837
	 Service cost............................................		  1,291		  1,539		  527		  630
	 Interest cost............................................		  1,480		  1,300		  311		  273
	 Actuarial loss/(gain)...............................		  8,718		  (4,386)		  1,279		  (1,402)
	 Benefits paid...........................................	 	 (734)	 	 (824)	 	 (122)	 	 (122)
		  Obligation at end of year..................	 	 40,964	 	 30,209	 	 8,211	 	 6,216

Change in plan assets:
	 Fair value at beginning of year..............		  38,639		  33,156		  —		  —
	 Actual return on plan assets...................		  2,495		  5,307		  —		  —
	 Employer contribution...........................		  —		  1,000		  122		  122
	 Benefits paid...........................................	 	 (734)	 	 (824)	 	 (122)	 	 (122)
		  Fair value at end of year...................	 	 40,400	 	 38,639	 	 —	 	 —

Overfunded (underfunded) status
	 at end of year..........................................	 $	 (564)	 $	 8,430	 $	 (8,211)	 $	 (6,216)

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consisted of:

	 Pension	 Supplemental
	 	 Plan	 	 	 Retirement Plan	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	 	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
	 (In thousands)
Other (liabilities)/assets...............................	 $	 (564)	 $	 8,430	 $	 (8,211)	 $	 (6,216)

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) consisted of:

	 Pension	 Supplemental
	 	 Plan	 	 	 Retirement Plan	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	 	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
	 (In thousands)
Net actuarial loss/(gain)...............................	 $	 10,790	 $	 1,709	 $	 935	 $	 (344)
Prior service (benefit)...................................	 	 (29)	 	 (34)	 	 —	 	 —
				    $	 10,761	 $	 1,675	 $	 935	 $	 (344)
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Information for pension plans with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan 
assets:

	 Pension	 Supplemental
	 	 Plan	 	 	 Retirement Plan	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	 	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
	 (In thousands)
Projected benefit obligation.........................	 $	 40,964	 $	 30,209	 $	 8,211	 $	 6,216
Accumulated benefit obligation...................		  34,572		  25,513		  8,211		  6,216
Fair value of plan assets...............................		  40,400		  38,639		  —		  —

The components of net periodic benefit cost and amounts recognized in other comprehensive 
income were as follows:

	 Pension	 Supplemental
	 	 Plan	 	 	 Retirement Plan	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	 	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
	 (In thousands)
Net periodic benefit cost:
	 Service cost............................................	 $	 1,291	 $	 1,539	 $	 527	 $	 630
	 Interest cost............................................		  1,481		  1,300		  311		  273
	 Expected return on assets.......................		  (2,859)		  (2,487)		  —		  —
	 Amortization of prior service
	   (benefit)/cost........................................		  (4)		  (4)		  —		  79
	 Amortization of net actuarial loss..........	 	 —	 	 741	 	 —	 	 53
		  Net periodic (benefit)/cost................	 	 (91)	 	 1,089	 	 838	 	 1,035

Amounts recognized in other
  comprehensive income:
	 Net actuarial loss/(gain).........................		  9,082		  (7,947)		  1,279		  (1,402)
	 Amortization of prior service
	   cost/(benefit)........................................	 	 4	 	 4	 	 —	 	 (79)
		  Total recognized in other
		    comprehensive (loss)/income.........	 	 9,086	 	 (7,943)	 	 1,279	 	 (1,481)

		  Total recognized in net periodic
		    benefit cost and other
		    comprehensive (loss)/income.........	 $	 8,995	 $	 (6,854)	 $	 2,117	 $	 (446)

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine projected benefit obligations are as 
follows:

	 Pension	 Supplemental
	 	 Plan	 	 	 Retirement Plan	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	 	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	

Discount rate................................................		  4.00%		  5.00%		  4.00%		  5.00%
Rate of compensation increase.....................		  4.00%		  4.00%		  NA		  NA
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Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost are as follows:

	 Pension	 Supplemental
	 	 Plan	 	 	 Retirement Plan	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	 	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	

Discount rate................................................		  5.00%		  4.00%		  5.00%		  4.00%
Expected long-term return on plan assets....		  7.50%		  7.50%		  NA		  NA
Rate of compensation increase.....................		  4.00%		  4.00%		  NA		  NA

The expected long-term rate of return has been established based on the ongoing investment 
of pension plan assets in a diversified portfolio of equities and fixed income securities. The 
components of the expected long-term rate of return include annual expectations for a 
risk-free rate of return of approximately 3.00% per year, plus long-term annual inflation at 
approximately 3.00% per year, plus a risk premium rate of return of approximately 1.50% 
per year.

The Corporation maintains an Investment Policy for its defined benefit pension plan. The 
objective of this policy is to seek a balance between capital appreciation, current income, 
and preservation of capital, with a longer term tilt towards equities because of the extended 
time horizon of the pension plan. The Investment Policy guidelines suggest that the target 
asset allocation percentages are from 60% to 85% in equities, from 10% to 55% in fixed 
income debt securities and cash, and from 0% to 10% in real assets. The Corporation does 
not expect to make a contribution to its defined benefit pension plan in 2015.

The Corporation’s defined pension plan weighted-average asset allocations by asset 
category were as follows:

	 	 December 31,	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	

Equity securities...........................................................................		  74%			   74%
Debt securities..............................................................................		  20			   23
Cash and equivalents....................................................................	 	 6		  	 3
	 Total.......................................................................................	 	 100%		  	 100%

The three broad levels of fair values used to measure the pension plan assets are as follows:

•	 Level 1 – Quoted prices for identical assets in active markets.
•	 Level 2 – Quoted prices for similar assets in active markets; quoted prices for 

identical or similar assets in inactive markets; and model-derived valuations in 
which all significant inputs and significant value drivers are observable in active 
markets.

•	 Level 3 – Valuations derived from techniques in which one or more significant 
inputs or significant value drivers are unobservable in the markets and which reflect 
the Corporation’s market assumptions.
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The following table summarizes the various categories of the pension plan’s assets:

	 	 Fair Value as of December 31, 2014	
	 	Level 1		 	 Level 2		 	Level 3		 	 Total	
	 (In thousands)
Asset category:
	 Cash and cash equivalents..................	 $	 2,270	 $	 —	 $	 —	 $	 2,270
	 Equity securities:
		  Common stocks:
			   Large cap core.........................		  16,003		  —		  —		  16,003
			   Mid cap core...........................		  3,393		  —		  —		  3,393
			   Small cap core.........................		  14		  —		  —		  14
			   International............................		  2,794		  —		  —		  2,794
		  Mutual funds:
			   Fixed income...........................		  8,006		  —		  —		  8,006
			   Mid cap blend.........................		  1,622		  —		  —		  1,622
			   International............................	 	 6,278	 	 —	 	 —	 	 6,278
				    Total..................................	 $	 40,380	 $	 —	 $	 —	 $	 40,380

There were no transfers between fair value levels during the years ended December 31, 
2014 and 2013.

The Corporation offers postretirement health care benefits for current and future retirees 
of the Bank. Employees receive a fixed monthly benefit at age 65 toward the purchase of 
postretirement medical coverage. The benefit received is based on the employee’s years 
of active service. The Corporation uses a December 31 measurement date each year to 
determine the benefit obligation for this plan.

Projected benefit obligations and funded status were as follows:

	 	 Postretirement
	 	 Healthcare Plan	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
	 (In thousands)

Change in projected benefit obligation:
	 Obligation at beginning of year......................................... 	 $	 508	 $	 628
	 Service cost........................................................................ 		  12		  14
	 Interest cost........................................................................ 		  23		  22
	 Actuarial loss/(gain)........................................................... 		  129		  (124)
	 Benefits paid....................................................................... 	 	 (26)	 	 (32)
		  Obligation at end of year.............................................. 	 	 646	 	 508

Change in plan assets:
	 Fair value at beginning of year.......................................... 		  —		  —
	 Actual return on plan assets............................................... 		  —		  —
	 Employer contribution....................................................... 		  26		  32
	 Benefits paid....................................................................... 	 	 (26)	 	 (32)
		  Fair value at end of year............................................... 	 	 —	 	 —

Overfunded (underfunded) status at end of year...................... 	 $	 (646)	 $	 (508)
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Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consisted of:

	 	 Postretirement
	 	 Healthcare Plan	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
	 (In thousands)

Other liabilities......................................................................... 	 $	 (646)	 $	 (508)

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss consisted of:

	 	 Postretirement
	 	 Healthcare Plan	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
	 (In thousands)

Net actuarial loss...................................................................... 	 $	 25	 $	 170
Prior service cost...................................................................... 	 	 12	 	 20
					     $	 37	 $	 190

Information for pension plans with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan 
assets:

	 	 Postretirement
	 	 Healthcare Plan	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
	 (In thousands)

Projected benefit obligation..................................................... 	 $	 646	 $	 508
Accumulated benefit obligation............................................... 		  646		  508
Fair value of plan assets........................................................... 		  —		  —

The components of net periodic benefit cost and amounts recognized in other comprehensive 
income were as follows:

	 	 Postretirement
	 	 Healthcare Plan	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
	 (In thousands)

Net periodic benefit cost:
	 Service cost........................................................................ 	 $	 12	 $	 14
	 Interest cost........................................................................ 		  23		  22
	 Expected return on assets................................................... 		  —		  —
	 Amortization of prior service (benefit).............................. 		  (8)		  (8)
	 Amortization of net actuarial (gain)................................... 	 	 (16)	 	 (5)
		  Net periodic benefit cost.............................................. 	 	 11	 	 23

Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income:
	 Net actuarial loss/(gain)..................................................... 		  129		  (124)
	 Amortization of prior service cost..................................... 		  8		  8
	 Amortization of net actuarial loss...................................... 	 	 16	 	 5
		  Total recognized in other
		    comprehensive loss/(income)..................................... 	 	 153	 	 (111)

		  Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost and
		    other comprehensive loss/(income)........................... 	 $	 164	 $	 (88)
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Weighted-average assumptions used to determine projected benefit obligations are as 
follows:

	 	 Postretirement
	 	 Healthcare Plan	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	

Discount rate............................................................................ 		  4.00%		  5.00%
Rate of compensation increase................................................. 		  NA		  NA

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost are as follows:

	 	 Postretirement
	 	 Healthcare Plan	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	

Discount rate............................................................................ 		  5.00%		  4.00%
Expected long-term return on plan assets................................ 		  NA		  NA
Rate of compensation increase................................................. 		  NA		  NA

Assumed health care cost trend rates are as follows:

	 	 December 31,	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	

Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year................ 		  4.00%		  5.00%
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed
  to decline (the ultimate trend rate)...................................... 		  4.00%		  5.00%
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate.................. 		  2015		  2014

Assumed health care trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the 
health care plans. A one-percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates 
would have the following effects:

	 	 One Percentage Point	
	 	 Increase	 	 	 Decrease	
	 (In thousands)
Effect on total service and interest cost................................ 	 $	 —	 $	 —
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation........................... 		  12		  (11)

Benefits expected to be paid in the next ten years are as follows:

											          Post-
								      Supplemental			 retirement
		 Year ended			   Pension			  Retirement			  Healthcare		
		 December 31,	 	 	 Plan	 	 	 Plan	 	 	 Plan	 	 	 Total	
	 (In thousands)
	 2015	 $	 1,142	 $	 369	 $	 29	 $	 1,540
	 2016		  1,178		  492		  29		  1,699
	 2017		  1,229		  501		  28		  1,758
	 2018		  1,340		  596		  27		  1,963
	 2019		  1,381		  596		  26		  2,003
	 2020-2024 inclusive	 	 8,512	 	 3,095	 	 155	 	 11,762
	 Ten year total	 $	 14,782	 $	 5,649	 $	 294	 $	 20,725
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The estimated amounts that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive 
income into net periodic benefit cost during 2015 are as follows:

						      					     Post-
								      Supplemental			 retirement
					    Pension			  Retirement			  Healthcare
				   	 Plan	 	 	 Plan	 	 	 Plan	 	 	 Total	
	 (In thousands)
Prior service cost.....................	 $	 4	 $	 —	 $	 —	 $	 4
Net loss...................................	 	 712	 	 —	 	 8	 	 720
	 Total..................................	 $	 716	 $	 —	 $	 8	 $	 724

The Corporation maintains a Profit Sharing Plan (“PSP”) that provides for deferral of 
federal and state income taxes on employee contributions allowed under Section 401(k) 
of federal law. The Corporation matches employee contributions up to 100% of the first 
3% of each participant’s salary. Each year, the Corporation may also make a discretionary 
contribution to the PSP. Employees are eligible to participate in the 401(k) feature of 
the PSP on the first business day of the quarter following their initial date of service and 
attainment of age 21. Employees are eligible to participate in discretionary contribution 
feature of the PSP on January 1 and July 1 of each year provided they have attained the age 
of 21 and the completion of 12 months of service consisting of at least 1,000 hours.

The Corporation has an Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP”) for its eligible 
employees. Employees are eligible to participate upon the attainment of age 21 and the 
completion of 12 months of service consisting of at least 1,000 hours. It is anticipated that 
the ESOP will purchase from the Corporation shares presently authorized but unissued at a 
price determined by an independent appraiser and certified by a committee of the trustees 
of the ESOP. Purchases of the Corporation’s stock by the ESOP will be funded solely by 
employer contributions. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the ESOP owned 320,534 shares 
and 314,773 shares, respectively, of the Corporation’s common stock.

Total expenses related to the Profit Sharing and ESOP Plans for the years ended 
December 31, 2014 and 2013, amounted to approximately $900,000 and $516,000, 
respectively.

14.    STOCK OPTION AND DIRECTOR STOCK PLANS

In 1993, the Corporation adopted a Stock Option Plan for key employees as an incentive 
for them to assist the Corporation in achieving long-range performance goals. During 
2005, the Corporation’s shareholders amended the plan to permit the issuance of restricted 
stock, restricted stock units (“RSUs”) and stock appreciation rights (“SARs”).
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Stock options time-vest over a five-year period. All options expire 10 years from the date 
granted and have been issued at fair value at the date of grant which, in some instances, 
may be less than publicly traded values. A summary of stock options outstanding as 
of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and changes during the years ended on those dates is 
presented below:

	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
		  Weighted		  Weighted
		  Average		  Average
	 Number	 Exercise	 Number	 Exercise
	 of Options	 	 Price	 	 of Options	 	 Price	

Stock options:
	 Outstanding at beginning of year.....		  248,777	 $	 29.71		  312,916	 $	 30.25
		  Granted.......................................		  —		  —		  —		  —
		  Forfeited.....................................		  —		  —		  —		  —
		  Expired.......................................		  (29,624)		  30.79		  (42,121)		  34.11
		  Exercised....................................	 	 (42,156)	 	 29.38	 	 (22,018)	 	 28.95
	 Outstanding at end of year...............	 	 176,997	 	 29.61	 	 248,777	 	 29.71

	 Exercisable at end of year................	 	 176,997	 $	 29.61	 	 248,777	 $	 29.71 

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at 
December 31, 2014:

	 	 Options Outstanding	 	 	 Options Exercisable	
			   Weighted	 Weighted		  Weighted
		  Number	 Average	 Average	 Number	 Average
	 Range of	 Outstanding	 Remaining	 Exercise	 Exercisable	 Exercise
	 Exercise Price	 	 	 at 12/31/14		 Contractual Life	 	 Price	 	 at 12/31/14	 	 Price	

	 $25.00 - $29.99		  147,839		  1.7 years	 $	 28.97		  147,839	 $	 28.97
	 $30.00 - $34.99	 	 29,158		  2.1 years	 $	 32.87	 	 29,158	 $	 32.87
		  	 176,997	 	 1.8 years	 $	 29.61	 	 176,997	 $	 29.61

Restricted stock awards time-vest over a five-year period and have been fair valued as of 
the date of grant. The holders of restricted stock awards participate fully in the rewards of 
stock ownership of the Corporation, including voting and dividend rights. A summary of 
non-vested restricted shares outstanding as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and changes 
during the years ended on those dates is presented below:

	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
		  Weighted		  Weighted
		  Average		  Average
	 Number	 Grant	 Number	 Grant
	 of Shares	 	 Value	 	 of Shares	 	 Value	

Restricted stock:
	 Non-vested at beginning of year......		  31,752	 $	 33.85		  45,704	 $	 33.34
		  Granted.......................................		  19,368		  41.88		  1,200		  40.09
		  Vested.........................................		  (10,742)		  33.85		  (14,852)		  32.82
		  Forfeited.....................................	 	 (1,292)	 	 33.62	 	 (300)	 	 32.03
	 Non-vested at end of year................	 	 39,086	 	 37.84	 	 31,752	 	 33.85
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Restricted stock unit awards vest based upon the Corporation’s performance over a 
three-year period and have been fair valued as of the date of grant. The holders of 
performance-based RSU awards do not participate in the rewards of stock ownership of the 
Corporation until vested. A summary of non-vested restricted stock units outstanding as of 
December 31, 2014 and 2013, and changes during the years ended on those dates is 
presented below:

	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
		  Weighted		  Weighted
		  Average		  Average
	 Number	 Grant	 Number	 Grant
	 of Shares	 	 Value	 	 of Shares	 	 Value	

Restricted stock units:............................
	 Non-vested at beginning of year......		  27,215	 $	 36.73		  26,205	 $	 33.22
		  Granted.......................................		  9,118		  44.02		  9,880		  40.70
		  Vested (Performance achieved)..		  —		  —		  —		  —
		  Forfeited.....................................		  (1,420)		  37.86		  —		  —
		  Expired (Performance
		    not achieved)............................	 	 (8,325)	 	 34.44	 	 (8,870)	 	 30.80
	 Non-vested at end of year................	 	 26,588	 	 39.85	 	 27,215	 	 36.73

Total expense related to the Stock Option Plan for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 
2013, amounted to approximately $525,000 and $404,000, respectively.

In 1993, the Corporation initiated a Director Stock Plan (“DSP”). The DSP provides that 
Directors of the Corporation receive their annual retainer fee in the form of stock in the 
Corporation. Total shares issued under the DSP in the years ending December 31, 2014 and 
2013 were 4,392 and 4,821, respectively.

15.    FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE-SHEET RISK

To meet the financing needs of its customers, the Bank is a party to financial instruments 
with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business. These financial instruments 
are primarily comprised of commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. 
Those instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in 
excess of the amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets.

The Bank’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the 
financial instrument for loan commitments and standby letters of credit is represented by 
the contractual amount of those instruments assuming that the amounts are fully advanced 
and that collateral or other security is of no value. The Bank uses the same credit policies 
in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet 
instruments.
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Off-balance-sheet financial instruments with contractual amounts that present credit risk 
included the following:

	 	 December 31,	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
	 (In thousands)

Standby letters of credit......................................................... 	 $	 14,989	 $	 18,775
Commitments to extend credit:
	 Unused portion of existing lines of credit........................ 		  206,074		  170,354
	 Origination of new loans.................................................. 		  58,418		  22,894
Commitments to sell loans..................................................... 		  —		  800
Liabilities associated with letters of credit............................. 		  105		  145

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee 
performance of a customer to a third party. Those guarantees are primarily issued to 
support public and private borrowing arrangements. Most guarantees extend for one year. 
The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in 
extending loan facilities to customers. The collateral supporting those commitments varies 
and may include real property, accounts receivable or inventory. Commitments to extend 
credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition 
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other 
termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since some of the commitments 
may expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily 
represent future cash requirements. The Bank evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness 
on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained upon extension of the credit is 
based on management’s credit evaluation of the customer. Collateral held varies, but may 
include primary residences, accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment, 
and income-producing commercial real estate.

16.    COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Corporation is obligated under various lease agreements covering its main office, 
branch offices and other locations. These agreements are accounted for as operating leases 
and their terms expire between 2015 and 2025 and, in some instances, contain options to 
renew for periods up to twenty-five years. The total minimum rentals due in future periods 
under these agreements in effect at December 31, 2014 were as follows:

		  Year Ended			  Future Minimum
	 	 December 31,	 	 	Lease Payments	
					     (In thousands)

	 2015	 $	 4,114
	 2016		  3,761
	 2017		  2,910
	 2018		  2,568
	 2019		  2,084
	 Thereafter	 	 3,264
	 Total minimum lease payments	 $	 18,701

Several lease agreements contain clauses calling for escalation of minimum lease payments 
contingent on increases in real estate taxes, gross income adjustments, percentage increases 
in the consumer price index and certain ancillary maintenance costs. Total rental expense 
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amounted to approximately $3,998,000 and $4,009,000 for the years ended December 31, 
2014 and 2013, respectively.

Under the terms of a sublease agreement, the Corporation will receive minimum annual 
rental payments of approximately $29,000 through July 31, 2019. Total rental income 
amounted to approximately $33,000 and $32,000 for the years ended December 31, 2014 
and 2013, respectively.

The Bank is involved in various legal actions arising in the normal course of business. 
Although the ultimate outcome of these actions cannot be ascertained at this time, it is 
the opinion of management, after consultation with counsel, that the resolution of such 
actions will not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial condition of 
the Corporation.

The Corporation has entered into agreements with its President and with certain other senior 
officers, whereby, following the occurrence of a change in control of the Corporation, if 
employment is terminated (except because of death, retirement, disability or for “cause” 
as defined in the agreements) or is voluntarily terminated for “good reason,” as defined in 
the agreements, said officers will be entitled to receive additional compensation, as defined 
in the agreements.

17.    STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Capital guidelines issued by the Federal Reserve Board (“FRB”) and by the FDIC 
require that the Corporation and the Bank maintain minimum capital levels for capital 
adequacy purposes. These regulations also require banks and their holding companies 
to maintain higher capital levels to be considered “well-capitalized”. Failure to meet 
minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory, and possibly additional 
discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect 
on the Corporation’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the 
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, there are specific capital guidelines that 
involve quantitative measures of assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as 
calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The risk-based capital rules are designed 
to make regulatory capital more sensitive to differences in risk profiles among bank and 
bank holding companies, to account for off-balance-sheet exposure and to minimize 
disincentives for holding liquid assets. Management believes that as of December 31, 2014 
and 2013, the Corporation and the Bank met all applicable minimum capital requirements 
and were considered “well-capitalized” by both the FRB and the FDIC. There have been 
no events or conditions since the end of the year that management believes would have 
changed the Corporation’s or the Bank’s category.
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The Corporation’s and the Bank’s actual and required capital measures were as follows:

					     			   Minimum To Be	
							       Well-Capitalized Under 
					    Minimum For Capital			  Prompt Corrective
	 	 Actual	 	 	 Adequacy Purposes	 	 	 Action Provisions	  
	 	 Amount	 	 	 Ratio	 	 	 Amount	 	 	 Ratio	 	 	 Amount	 	 	 Ratio	  
	 (Dollars in thousands) 

At December 31, 2014:
	 Cambridge Bancorp:
		  Total capital
		    (to risk-weighted assets)......	 $	 135,696	 13.2%	 $	 82,374	 8.0%	 $	 102,967	 10.0%
		  Tier I capital
		    (to risk-weighted assets)......		  122,808	 11.9%		  41,187	 4.0%		  61,780	 6.0%
		  Tier I capital
		    (to average assets)...............		  122,808	 7.8%		  63,358	 4.0%		  79,198	 5.0%
	 Cambridge Trust Company:
		  Total capital
		    (to risk-weighted assets)......	 $	 131,704	 12.8%	 $	 82,374	 8.0%	 $	 102,967	 10.0%
		  Tier I capital
		    (to risk-weighted assets)......		  118,816	 11.5%		  41,187	 4.0%		  61,780	 6.0%
		  Tier I capital
		    (to average assets)...............		  118,816	 7.6%		  62,686	 4.0%		  78,358	 5.0%

At December 31, 2013:
	 Cambridge Bancorp:
		  Total capital
		    (to risk-weighted assets)......	 $	 123,992	 13.4%	 $	 74,117	 8.0%	 $	 92,646	 10.0%
		  Tier I capital
		    (to risk-weighted assets)......		  112,881	 12.2%		  37,058	 4.0%		  55,588	 6.0%
		  Tier I capital
		    (to average assets)...............		  112,881	 7.6%		  59,160	 4.0%		  73,950	 5.0%
	 Cambridge Trust Company:
		  Total capital
		    (to risk-weighted assets)......	 $	 121,869	 13.2%	 $	 74,117	 8.0%	 $	 92,646	 10.0%
		  Tier I capital
		    (to risk-weighted assets)......		  110,758	 12.0%		  37,058	 4.0%		  55,588	 6.0%
		  Tier I capital
		    (to average assets)...............		  110,758	 7.5%		  59,048	 4.0%		  73,810	 5.0%

18.    OTHER INCOME

The components of other income were as follows:

	 	 Year Ended December 31,	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
	 (In thousands)

Safe deposit box income.........................................................	 $	 337	 $	 345
Loan fee income......................................................................		  312		  282
Miscellaneous income.............................................................	 	 290	 	 248
	 Total other income............................................................	 $	 939	 $	 875
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19.    OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

The components of other operating expenses were as follows:

	 	 Year Ended December 31,	
	 	 2014	 	 	 2013	
	 (In thousands)

Contributions / Public relations..............................................	 $	 547	 $	 489
Director fees............................................................................		  529		  473
Travel and entertainment........................................................		  294		  325
Dues and memberships...........................................................		  294		  276
Printing and supplies...............................................................		  286		  373
Postage....................................................................................		  282		  283
Security...................................................................................		  266		  254
Other losses.............................................................................		  455		  129
Miscellaneous expense............................................................	 	 260	 	 230
	 Total other operating expenses..........................................	 $	 3,213	 $	 2,832

20.    OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Comprehensive income is defined as all changes to equity except investments by and 
distributions to stockholders. Net income is a component of comprehensive income, 
with all other components referred to in the aggregate as “other comprehensive income”. 
The Corporation’s other comprehensive income consists of unrealized gains or losses 
on securities held at year-end classified as available-for-sale and the component of the 
unfunded retirement liability computed in accordance with the requirements of ASC 715, 
“Compensation – Retirement Benefits”. The before-tax and after-tax amount of each of 
these categories, as well as the tax (expense)/benefit of each, is summarized as follows:

	 	 Year Ended December 31, 2014	
					     Tax		
		 Before Tax		  (Expense)			   Net-of-tax
	 	 Amount	 	 	 or Benefit	 	 	 Amount	
	 (In thousands)

Defined benefit retirement plans:
	 Change in unfunded retirement liability......	 $	 (10,517)	 $	 4,296	 $	 (6,221)
Unrealized gains/(losses) on AFS securities:
	 Unrealized holding gains/(losses) arising
	   during the period........................................		  6,124		  (2,152)		  3,972
	 Reclassification adjustment for gains
	   recognized in net income...........................	 	 (1,073)	 	 385	 	 (688)
				    $	 (5,466)	 $	 2,529	 $	 (2,937)
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	 	 Year Ended December 31, 2013	
					     Tax		
		 Before Tax		  (Expense)			   Net-of-tax
	 	 Amount	 	 	 or Benefit	 	 	 Amount	
	 (In thousands)
Defined benefit retirement plans:
	 Change in unfunded retirement liability......	 $	 9,587	 $	 (3,916)	 $	 5,671
Unrealized (losses)/gains on AFS securities:
	 Unrealized holding (losses)/gains arising
	   during the period........................................		  (15,441)		  5,554		  (9,887)
	 Reclassification adjustment for gains
	   recognized in net income...........................	 	 (1,121)	 	 401	 	 (720)
				    $	 (6,975)	 $	 2,039	 $	 (4,936)

Reclassifications out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (“AOCI”) are 
presented below:

	 Year Ended December 31, 2014	
	 Details about			   Amount			   Affected Line Item	
	 AOCI			  Reclassified			  on the	
	 Components	 	 	from AOCI		 	 Statement of Income	
	 (In thousands)

Unrealized gains/(losses) on AFS securities:
	 $	 1,073	 Gain on disposition of
			     investment securities
	 	 (385)	 Income tax expense
	 $	 688	 Net income

21.    EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following represents a reconciliation between basic and diluted earnings per share:

	 	 Year Ended December 31, 2014	
		  Basic			   Diluted
	 	 EPS	 	 	 EPS	
Numerator:
	 Net income........................................................................	 $	14,793,000	 $	14,944,000

Denominator:
	 Weighted average common shares outstanding................		  3,886,692		  3,886,692
	 Dilutive effect of stock options.........................................	 	 —	 	 70,724
		  Total shares.................................................................	 	 3,886,692	 	 3,957,416

Earnings per share...................................................................	 $	 3.81	 $	 3.78

	 	 Year Ended December 31, 2013	
		  Basic			   Diluted
	 	 EPS	 	 	 EPS	
Numerator:
	 Net income........................................................................	 $	14,015,000	 $	14,140,000

Denominator:
	 Weighted average common shares outstanding................		  3,839,146		  3,839,146
	 Dilutive effect of stock options.........................................	 	 —	 	 68,055
		  Total shares.................................................................	 	 3,839,146	 	 3,907,201

Earnings per share...................................................................	 $	 3.65	 $	 3.62
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22.    FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following is a summary of the carrying values and estimated fair values of the 
Corporation’s significant financial instruments as of the dates indicated.

	 	 December 31, 2014	 	 	 December 31, 2013	
		 Carrying		 Estimated			 Carrying		 Estimated
	 	 Value	 	 Fair Value		 	 Value	 		 Fair Value
	 (In thousands)
Financial assets:
	 Cash and cash equivalents..................	 $	 17,440	 $	 17,440	 $	 88,107	 $	 88,107
	 Securities - available for sale..............		  339,791		  339,791		  388,793		  388,793
	 Securities - held to maturity................		  79,646		  83,431		  59,181		  61,455
	 Loans held for sale..............................		  284		  284		  403		  405
	 Loans, net............................................		  1,066,497		  1,073,244		  929,743		  935,837
	 FHLB Boston stock............................		  7,955		  7,955		  6,231		  6,231
	 Accrued interest receivable.................		  3,925		  3,925		  3,626		  3,626
	 Mortgage servicing rights...................		  332		  453		  384		  438

Financial liabilities:
	 Deposits..............................................		  1,370,536		  1,369,307		  1,409,047		  1,407,948
	 Short-term borrowings........................		  69,000		  69,000		  —		  —

The Corporation follows ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures” for 
financial assets and liabilities. ASC 820 defines fair value, establishes a framework for 
measuring fair value and expands disclosure requirements about fair value measurements. 
ASC 820, among other things, emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, 
not an entity-specific measurement, and states that a fair value measurement should be 
determined based on the assumptions the market participants would use in pricing the 
asset or liability. In addition, ASC 820 specifies a hierarchy of valuations techniques based 
on whether the types of valuation information (“inputs”) are observable or unobservable. 
Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while 
unobservable inputs reflect the Corporation’s market assumptions. These two types of 
inputs have created the following fair value hierarchy:

•	 Level 1 – Quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.
•	 Level 2 – Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted 

prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets; and model-
derived valuations in which all significant inputs and significant value drivers are 
observable in active markets.

•	 Level 3 – Valuations derived from techniques in which one or more significant 
inputs or significant value drivers are unobservable in the markets and which reflect 
the Corporation’s market assumptions.

Under ASC 820, fair values are based on the price that would be received to sell an asset 
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. When available, the Corporation uses quoted market prices to determine 
fair value. If quoted prices are not available, fair value is based upon valuation techniques 
such as matrix pricing or other models that use, where possible, current market-based or 
independently sourced market parameters, such as interest rates. If observable market-
based inputs are not available, the Corporation uses unobservable inputs to determine 
appropriate valuation adjustments using methodologies applied consistently over time.
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Valuation techniques based on unobservable inputs are highly subjective and require 
judgments regarding significant matters such as the amount and timing of future cash 
flows and the selection of discount rates that may appropriately reflect market and credit 
risks. Changes in these judgments often have a material impact on the fair value estimates. 
In addition, since these estimates are as of a specific point in time, they are susceptible 
to material near-term changes. The fair values disclosed do not reflect any premium or 
discount that could result from offering significant holdings of financial instruments at 
bulk sale, nor do they reflect the possible tax ramifications or estimated transaction costs. 
Changes in economic conditions may also dramatically affect the estimated fair values.

The Corporation uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain 
assets and to determine fair value disclosures. Securities available for sale are recorded 
at fair value on a recurring basis. Additionally, from time to time, the Corporation may 
be required to record at fair value other assets on a nonrecurring basis, such as collateral 
dependent impaired loans.

The following table summarizes certain assets reported at fair value:

	 	 Fair Value as of December 31, 2014	
	 	 Level 1	 	 	 Level 2	 	 	 Level 3	 	 	 Total	
	 (In thousands)
Measured on a recurring basis:
	 Securities available for sale:
		  U.S. GSE obligations....................	 $	 —	 $	 90,471	 $	 —	 $	 90,471
		  Mortgage-backed securities..........		  —		  245,680		  —		  245,680
		  Corporate debt securities...............		  —		  3,016		  —		  3,016
		  Mutual funds.................................		  624		  —		  —		  624

	 	 Fair Value as of December 31, 2013	
	 	 Level 1	 	 	 Level 2	 	 	 Level 3	 	 	 Total	
	 (In thousands)
Measured on a recurring basis:
	 Securities available for sale:
		  U.S. GSE obligations....................	 $	 —	 $	 73,244	 $	 —	 $	 73,244
		  Mortgage-backed securities..........		  —		  292,322		  —		  292,322
		  Corporate debt securities...............		  —		  22,614		  —		  22,614
		  Mutual funds.................................		  613		  —		  —		  613
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The following is a description of the principal valuation methodologies used by the 
Corporation to estimate the fair values of its financial instruments.

Investment Securities
For investment securities, fair values are primarily based upon valuations obtained from 
a national pricing service which uses matrix pricing with inputs that are observable in 
the market or can be derived from, or corroborated by, observable market data. When 
available, quoted prices in active markets for identical securities are utilized.

Loans Held for Sale
For loans held for sale, fair values are estimated using projected future cash flows, 
discounted at rates based upon either trades of similar loans or mortgage-backed securities, 
or at current rates at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit 
ratings and for similar remaining maturities.

Loans
For most categories of loans, fair values are estimated using projected future cash flows, 
discounted at rates based upon either trades of similar loans or mortgage-backed securities, 
or at current rates at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit 
ratings and for similar remaining maturities. Loans that are deemed to be impaired in 
accordance with ASC 310, “Receivables”, are valued based upon the lower of cost or fair 
value of the underlying collateral.

FHLB Boston Stock
The fair value of FHLB Boston stock equals its carrying value since such stock is only 
redeemable at its par value.

Mortgage Servicing Rights
The fair value of mortgage servicing rights is estimated based on the present value of 
expected cash flows, incorporating assumptions for discount rate, prepayment speed and 
servicing cost.

Deposits
The fair value of non-maturity deposit accounts is the amount payable on demand at the 
reporting date. This amount does not take into account the value of the Bank’s long-term 
relationships with core depositors. The fair value of fixed-maturity certificates of deposit 
is estimated using a replacement cost of funds approach and is based upon rates currently 
offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities.

Other Financial Assets and Liabilities
Cash and cash equivalents, accrued interest receivable and short-term borrowings have fair 
values which approximate their respective carrying values because these instruments are 
payable on demand or have short-term maturities and present relatively low credit risk and 
interest rate risk.
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Off-Balance-Sheet Financial Instruments
In the course of originating loans and extending credit, the Bank will charge fees in 
exchange for its commitment. While these commitment fees have value, the Bank has not 
estimated their value due to the short-term nature of the underlying commitments and their 
immateriality.

Values Not Determined
In accordance with ASC 820, the Corporation has not estimated fair values for non-
financial assets such as banking premises and equipment, goodwill, the intangible value 
of the Bank’s portfolio of loans serviced for itself and the intangible value inherent in the 
Bank’s deposit relationships (i.e., core deposits), among others. Accordingly, the aggregate 
fair value amounts presented do not represent the underlying value of the Corporation.
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